
COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ELECTRONIC PUBLIC INFORMATION PACKAGE FOR  
COUNCIL MEETING 

SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2017 – 8:30 A.M. 
DELTA HOTEL, KINGSTON WATERFRONT 

1 JOHNSON STREET 
KINGSTON, ONTARIO K7L 5H7 

 



RHPA

Duties and Obiects of Colleges

Dufy of College
z.l It is the duty of the College to work in consultation with the Minister to ensure, as a

matter of public urterest, that the people of Ontario have access to adequate numbers of

qualified, iLitl"¿ and competent regulated health professionals' 2008' c' l8' s- l'

Objects of College
3. ( I ) The College has the following objects'

l. To regulate the practice of the profession and to govern the members in accordance

with the healttr profession Act, this Code and the Regulated Health Professions

Act, I991 and the regulations and by-,laws'

2. To.develop, establish and maintain standards of qualification lor persons to be issued

certificates o f registration.

3. To develop, establish and maintain programs and standards of practice to assure the

qualify of the practice of the profession'

4. 'I-o develop, establish and maintain standards of knowledge and skill and programs to

promoteãntinuing evaluation, competence and improvement among the members'

4.1 To develop, in collaboration and consultation with other Colleges, standards of

knowledgå, skill and judgment relating to the performance olcontrolled acts

"o-,ooriumong 
healih professions to enhance interprolessional collaboration, while

respecting the rinique character of individual health professions and their members'

5. To develop, establish and maintain standards of professional ethics for the members'

6- To develop, establish and rnaintain programs to assist individuals to exercise their

rights under this Code and the Regulated Heatth Professions Act, ] 991 '

T.Toadminister the health profession Act, this code and the Regulated Health

professions Act, lggl as it relates to the profession and to perform the other duties

and exercise the other po\Ãiers that are imposed or conlened on the College'

g- To promote and enhance relations befween the College and its members, other

health profession colleges, key stakeholders, and the pubtic.

9. To promote inter-professional collaboration with other health profession colleges'

10. To develop, establish, and maintain standards and programs to promote the ability

of members to respond to changes in practice environments, advances in

technolory and other emerging issues-

I l. Any other objects retating to human health care that the Council considers

desirable. t9é1, c. 18, SJrte¿. 2, s.3 (l); 2007, c- 10, Sched' M, s' l8; 2009, c'26'

s. 2a (l l)-

Dufy
(2) In carrying out its objects, the College has a duty to serye and protect the public

interest. I991, c. 18, Sched. 2, s- 3 (2)'

.1



Version date: December 7, 2015 

 

 

COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO 
MISSION AND STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  

 
 
MISSION 
 
The College of Chiropractors of Ontario is the self-governing body of the 
chiropractic profession committed to improving the health and well-being of 
Ontarians by informing the public and assuring them of competent and ethical 
chiropractic care. 

 
The College examines, registers and regulates the chiropractic profession and 
partners with other health professions, their licensing bodies, organizations and 
government. 
 

Developed at the strategic planning session in September 2004 
Approved by Council on February 8, 2005 

 
 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
 

 
1. Improve communication of the role, mandate and mechanism of CCO to key 

internal and external stakeholders. 
 
2. Strive for unity in the public interest, while respecting the diversity within the 

profession. 
 
3. Optimize chiropractic services in the public interest. 
 
4. Continue to regulate in a fiscally responsible manner: Statutory mandate met 

and priorities set and appropriately resourced (human and financial). 
 

 
Developed at the strategic planning session: October 2010  
Confirmed at the strategic planning sessions: September 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 

 
 
 
  



CCO Cooe or, CoruDUcT FOR CURRCruT AND
FoRnneR EI.eCreD AND PUELIC MCMSCNS OF

GouncrL AND Not¡-CouNcrL Conn¡vurree MemBERS

Executive Committee
Approved by Council: September 28,2012
Amended: February 23,2016, April 19,2016, September 15, 2016

Current and former elected and public members of Council and non-Council committee
members must, at all times, maintain high standards of integrity, honesty and loyalty
when discharging their College duties. They must act in the best interest of the College.
They shall:

1. be familiar and comply with the provisions of the Regulated Health Professions
Act, l99l (RHPA), its regulations and the Health Professions Procedural Code,
the Chiropractìc Act I 991 , its regulations, and the by-laws and policies of the
College;

2. diligently take part in committee work and actively serve on committees as

elected and appointed by the Council;

3. regularly attend meetings on time and participate constructively in discussions;

4. offer opinions and express views on matters before the College, Council and
committee, when appropriate;

5. participate in all deliberations and communications in a respectful, courteous and
professional manner, recognizing the diverse background, skills and experience of
members on Council and committees;

6. uphold the decisions made by Council and committees, regardless of the level of
prior individual disagreement;

7. place the interests of the College, Council and committee above self-interests;

8. avoid and, where that is not possible, declare any appeatance of or actual conflicts
of interestsl;

refrain fiom including or referencing Council or committee positions held at the
College in any personal or business promotional materials, advertisements and
business cards;2

I There is a general assumption of real or perceived conflict unless confirmation of no conflict by the
Executive Committee and/or Council, which will be addressed promptly.
2 This section does not preclude the use ofprofessional biographies for professional involvement.

9



CCO Code of Conduct

10. preserve conf,rdentiality of all information before Council or committee unless
disclosure has been authorized by Council or otherwise exempted under s. 36(i)
of the RHPA;

1 l. refrain from communicating to members, including other Council or committee
members, on statutory committees regarding registration, complaints, reports,
investigations, disciplinary or fitness to practise proceedings which could be
perceived as an attempt to influence a statutory committee or a breach of
conhdentiality, unless he or she is a member of the panel or, where there is no
panel, of the statutory committee dealing with the matter;

12. refrain from communicating to members and stakeholder3 on behalf of CCO
including on social medìa, unless authorized by Councila;

13. respect the boundaries of staff whose role is not to report to or work for individual
Council or committee members; and

14. be respectful of others and not engage in behaviour that might reasonably be
perceived as verbal, physical or sexual abuse or harassment.

Potential Breaches of the Code of Gonduct

15. An elected or appointed member of Council or non-Council committee member
who becomes aware of any potential breach of this code of conduct should
immediately advise the President and Registrar, or if the potential breach involves
the President, advise the Vice President and Registrar; and

16. Potential breaches will be addressed f,rrst through informal discussion with the
Council member(s) or non-Council committee member(s), and subsequently by
written communication expressing concerns and potential consequences.

I, , Council member or non-Council committee member of the
College of Chiropractors of Ontario underlake to comply with the CCO Code of Conduct
for Current and Former Elected and Public Members of Council and Non-Council
Committee Members, both during and following my term on CCO Council or a
committee

Signature Witness

Date

3 Stakeholders include professional associations, societies, and other organizations related to the regulation,
education and practice of chiropractic.
a This does not preclude Council members from communicating about CCO, provided they are not
communicating on behalf of CCO.

2



1

2

Rules of Order of the Council of the
Gollege of Chiropractors of Ontario

Approved by Gouncil: September 20, 2014

ln this Schedule, "member" means a council member

Each agenda topic will be introduced briefly by the person or committee
representative raising it. Members may ask questions of clarification, then the
person introducing the matter shall make a motion and another member must
second the motion before it can be debated.

When any member wishes to speak, he or she shall so indicate by raising his or
her hand and shall address the chair and confine himself or herself to the matter
under discussion.

Staff persons and consultants with expertise in a matter may be permitted by the
chair to answer specific questions about the matter.

5

6

Observers at a council meeting are not allowed to speak to a matter that is under
debate.

A member may not speak again on the debate of a matter until every council
member who wishes to speak to it has been given an opportunity to do so. The
only exception is that the person introducing the matter or a staff person may
answer questions about the matter. Members will not speak to a matter more
than twice without the permission of the chair.

A member may not speak longer than five minutes upon any motion except with
the permission of Council.

When a motion is under debate, no other motion can be made except to amend
it, to postpone it, to put the motion to a vote, to adjourn the debate of the council
meeting or to refer the motion to a committee.

A motion to amend the motion then under debate shall be disposed of first. Only
one motion to amend the motion under debate can be made at a time.

3

4

7

B

I

10 When a motion is on the floor, a member shall make every effort to be present
and to remain in the room.

When it appears to the chair that the debate in a matter has concluded, when
Council has passed a motion to vote on the motion or when the time allocated to
the debate of the matter has concluded, the chair shall put the motion to a vote
and no further debate is permitted.

11



Rules of Order of Council
Approved by Council: September 20, 2014

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

2

A member is not entitled to vote upon any motion in which he or she has a
conflict of interest, and the vote of any member so interested will be disallowed.

Any motion decided by the Council shall not be re-introduced during the same
session except by a two-thirds vote of the Council then present.

Whenever the chair is of the opinion that a motion offered to the Council is
contrary to these rules or the by-laws, he or she shall rule the motion out of order
and give his or her reasons for doing so.

The chair shall preserve order, etiquette and decorum, and shall decide
questions of order, which include addressing any distractions that interfere with
the business of the meeting, subject to an appeal to the Council without debate.

The above rules may be relaxed by the chair if it appears that greater informality
is beneficial in the particular circumstances unless the Council requires strict
adherence.

Members are not permitted to discuss a matter with observers while it is being
debated.

Members are to be respectful, courteous and professional while others are
speaking.

ln all cases not provided for in these rules or by other rules of Council, the
current edition of Robert's Rules of Order shall be followed so far as they may be
applicable.



List of Commonly Used Acronyms at CCO
as at May 2017

Acronym Full Name

ADR Alternative Dispute Resolution
AFC Alliance For Chiropractic (formerly cAC)
BCCC British Columbia College of Chiropractors
BDC Board of Directors of
cAc Chiropractic Awareness Council

CCA Canadian Association

CCEB Canadian Board

CCEC Council on Education

cccr Canadian Chiropractic Guideline Initiative
cco College of Chiropractors of Ontario
CCPA Canadian Chiropractic Protective Association

CCRF Canadian Chiropractic Research Foundation

Chiropractic Act Chiropractic Act, I99l
cMcc Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College

cNo of Nurses of Ontario
Code Health Procedurql Code, Schedule 2 to the RHPA

CPGs Clinical Practice Guidelines
CPSO College of Physicians and Surgeons of Ontario

cRc Chiropractic Review Committee
DAC Assessment Centre

FCC Federation of Canadian

FCCOS(C) Fellow of the College of Chiropractic Orthopaedic Speqralists (CanadÐ

FCCR(C) Fellow of the Chiropractic College of Radiologists (Canada)

FCCPOR(C) Fellow of the Canadian Chiropractic College of Physical and Occupational

Rehabilitation (Canada)

FCCS(C) Fellow of the College of Chiropractic Sciences (Canada)

FRCCSS(C) Fellow of the of S Sciences C

FCLB Federation of Licens Boards

FHRCO Federation of Health Regulatory Co llaccc of Ontario

HARP Healins Arts Radiation Protection Act
HIA Health Insurance Act
HPARB Health Professions and Review Board

HPRAC Health Professions Regulatory Advisory Council

tcRc Inquiries, Complaints & Reports Committee

MESPO Model for the Evaluation of Scopes of Practice in Ontario

MOHLTC of Health and Term Care

MTCU Mini of and Universities

NBCE National Board of Chiropractic Examiners

ocA Ontario Chiropractic Association
ODP Office ect

OFC Office of the Fairness Commissioner
OHIP Ontario Health Insurance Plan

PHIPA Personal Health Information Protection Act
PIPEDA Personal and Protection Electronic Documents Act
RHPA Regulated Health Professions Act, l99I
UQTR Université du Québec à Trois-Rivières
WHO World Health
WSIB and Insurance BoardWorkplace Safety



Couece or CnrRopRAcroRs or OrurARto

Gouncil Meeting

Delta Hotel, Kingston Waterfront
I Johnson Street

Kingston, Ontario KZL 5H7

Saturday, September 16, 2017 (8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.l1

AGENDA (Public) 2

Page ITEM Action
RequiredNo.

Action By Priority
Level 3

SEcTloNs
OF THE

CoDEFoR
lN-
CAMERA

SEssroNs

'FDIRECTED

BY

CouNctL

Cnu- To ORDER Shankar Hìeh

Appoint Parliamentarian Council Hieh

1. Consent Agenda Approve Council

9 1.1 Discipline Committee Report

1.1.1 CCO v. Dr. Barbara Ellis
Resolution Agreement
(August 1,2017)

1.1.2 CCO v. Dr. Kenneth
Oldaker Resolution
Agreement (August 2,
20t7)

11

17

1 Subject to Council's direction.
2 lf you would like the complete background documentation relating to any item on the agenda, please speak

to Ms Willson.
3 Sub;ect to Council's direction. Consider addressing all agreed upon high priority items first whether they are

old or new business items.



CouncilAg enda -September 16, 2017 (Public) 2

SEcT¡oNS

OF THE

CoDEFoR
lN-

CAMERA

SEsstoNs
,F
DIRECTED

BY

CouNctL

Page
No.

ITEM

yron

35

Atchison Resolution
Agreement (August 2,

20r7)
1,1.4 FHRCO Conducting a

Discipline Hearing
Program
(Basic - Oct. 26,20t7,
Advanced - Oct. 27,2017)

1.1.5 Various local media re:

Dr. Atchison
1.2 Fitness to Practise Committee

Report
1.3 Inquiries, Complaints and

Reports Committee RePort
(rcRC)
1.3.1 HPARB decision dated

August 8,2017
1.4 Advertising Committee RePort

2. Adoption of Agenda

2.1 Conflict of Interest

75

3. Adoption of Minutes a

3.1 June 23,2017

4. Gommittee RePorts

Approve Council Híeh

Action
Required

Adopt
Review/
Declare any
real or
perceived
conflicts of
interest
relating to
any agenda
item

Action By

Council
Council

Priority
Level 3

Hieh
Hìeh

38

44

45

46

61

4 Only members present at the meeting should approve the minutes.



CouncilAg enda -September 16, 2017 (Public) 3

SEcno¡¡s
OF THE

CoDEFOR
lN-
CAMERA

SEsstoNs
IF
DIRECTED

BY

GouNctL

Page
No.

126

308

316

ITEM

96 4.1 Executive Committee RePort

4.1.3 Provisions of RHPA tel. in
camera discussions and

extract from June 23,2017
Council agenda

Move In Camera (if directed)

Move out of camera and ratifY
decisions made in camera
Technologt Upgrade Proiect (IUP)

C ommuníc atío ns/Strategic Planníng
4.1.14 Various Feedback, re:

Presidents Luncheon,
AGM and Annual RePort

4.IJ5 Various information re:

CCO road shows including
notifications, feedback,
attendees and future
requests

4.1.16 ExamPles of Provincial
roadshows bY other
regulators

Action By Priority
Level 3

Shankar/
Council

Council Medium

Friedman Hísh

Walton Medium

Action
Required

Verbal
Repof/
Approve
recommend
ations/
Ratify
decisions
made in-
camera
Review

Ss. 7
(2)
(bXc)
(dXe)

Verbal
Report

FYI

Verbal
Report (time
permitting)

384 FYI



CouncilAgenda -SePte mber 16,2017 (Public) 4

SEcÏoNs
OF THE
CoDEFoR
lN-
CAMERA

SEsstoNs
IF
DIRECTED

BY
CouNctL

Page ITEM Action
Required

Consider
next phase

of by-law
amendments
FYI

Welcome Council

Welcome
back

FYI

Verbal
Report

FYI

Action By Priority
Level 3

Council Medium

No.

communications to
members and stakeholders
re: updates to policies and

guidelines etc.

Bylaws

444 4.t.2t

451

459

467

503

Current By-law 17: Public
Register

Minßtry of Health and Long-Term
Cøre
4.1.22 Appointment of Public

Member, Ms Karoline
Bourdeau

4,1.23 Reappointment of Public
Member, Ms Georgia
Allan

4.I.24 Communication dated JulY

7,2017 re: UPdated Health
Boards Secretariat Claim
Form

4.1.25 Various Information, re:

Healing Arts Radiation
Protection Act uPdate (J:uJY

2017)
4.1.26 Communication dated

August I,2017 ftom
Minister Hoskins re: Long
Term Care Public Inquiry

4.L27 Various media leading to
InquirY announcement

4.1.28 Communication dated JulY

31,2017 re: MOHLTC
Consulting on
TransParencY in the Health
Care Sector

Council

Willson Medium

Híeh

Híeh

463

492

FYI

FYI529



CouncilAgend a -September 16, 2017 (Public) 5

No

SÉcfloNs
OF THE
CoDËFoR
lN-

CAMERA

SEssroNs
IF
OIRECTED

BY

CouNctL

Page ITEM

s65

574

648

652

655

reports re:
pharmacies/conflicts of
interest
Correspondence dated
August 4,2017 re: Referral
to HPRAC re:
Psychotherapy

Action
Required

FYI

Primarily
FYI subject
to questions
and verbal
reports

Action By Priority
Level 3

4.t.32

Chiropractic O rganizations/
Health Related Stakeholders

Ontario Chiropractic
Association(OcA)
4.L35 Various

BulletinsAtrotifications
C anadi an Chir opr acti c As s o ciati on

4.1.42 Articles from Back Matters
2017 "Your First Call
Matters" and "Caution re:

Bill 87"
Alliance for Chiropractic
4.1.43 Correspondence dated June

19, 2017, "4 MalPractice
Insurance Solution for
AFC Members"

Federation of Health RegulatorY
Colleges of Ontario
4.1.44 Announcementre:

Executive Committee
(May 19,2017) and
FHRCO Highlights
document



Council a -September 16, 2017 (Public) o

SÉcfloNs
OF lHE
CooËFoR
lN-
CAMERA

SEssroNs
IF

DIRECTED

BY
CouNctL

Page
No.

731

741

792

ITEM Action
Required

Verbal
Report/
Approve
Recommend
-ations
FYI

Action By

Gates/
Council

Priority
Level 3

Hísh

19,2017 re: Deanna
V/illiams' work re: Sexual

Abuse Task Force
Recommendations and
information re: meeting
with colleges August 23,
2017

4 .2 P alient Relations Committee
Report

753

4.2.2 5-014: Prohibition of a
Sexual Relationship with a
Patient (cunent)

4.2.4 P-018: Funding for
Therapy or Counselling for
Patients Sexually Abused
by Members (current)

Information re : Bill 87 (Protecting
Patients Act, 20 I 7) (PPA)
4.2,8 PPA

FYI

Review Council Medium

837 4.3 Quality Assurance Committee
Report

4,3.2 5-002: Record KeePing
(cunent)

860 4.4 Registration Committee Report

Verbal
Report/
Approve
Recommend
-ations
FYI

Verbal
Reporl
Approve
Recommend
-ations

Tavares Hìeh

Anderson-
Peacock

Híeh

848



CouncilAgenda -september 16, 2017 (Public) 7

No.

SEGTIoNS

OF THE

CoDEFoR
lN-
CAMERA

SEsstoNs
IF
DIRECTÉO

BY

CouNcrL

Page ITEM

867

869

880

884

888

Action
Required

Action By Priority
Level 3

memo and process

4.4.2 Online Corporation
renewal memo and process

4.4.3 Renewal information for
20r7

4.4.4 Information re: departure
of Nuzhat Jafri, Executive
Director, OFC

5. New Business

5. 1 Information dated August 14, 2017
from Richard Steinecke re:

Position Statements/Guidelines

6. For Your lnformation

Other Regulators
College of Chiropodists of Ontario
6.1 Various media reports dated July

2017 re Disgraced dentist-turned-
foot doctor

College of Dental Hygienists of
Ontario
6.2 Exlract from Milestones (issue 2,

2017) re: Social Media
Royal College of Dental Surgeons of
Ontario
6.3 Information re: Changes to

Dispatch publication (JulY 2017)

6.4 Various media reports re: RCDSO
and dentists

Review Council Hísh

Discuss Council Medium

FYI (subject
to
questions)

FYI

FYI

894

898

899



CouncilAgenda -September 16, 2017 (Public) I

SEcnoNs
OF THE

CoDEFoR
lN-
CAMERA

SEssroNs
IF
DIRECTEO

BY

CouNcrL

Page
No.

ITEM Action
Required

Action By Priority
Level 3

909
T e chnol o gi s t s of Ont ar io
6.5 Background

information/Communications
dated August 2,10,2017 re:
Regulation of Sono graphers

6.6 Consultation (August 2017) re:
regulation amendments

College of Midwives of Ontario
6.7 Consultation dated July 14,20t7

re: Professional Standards

College of Naturopaths of Ontario
6.8 CONO Bulletin dated Jvne26,

2017
College of Nurses of Ontario
6.9 Various articles/release re: Public

Inquiry into V/ettlaufer case (June

- July 2017)

Ontario College of Pharmacists
6.10 Ontario Regulation under

the Pharmacy Act,
I 99 I (Professional
Misconduct)

College of Physicians and Surgeons of
Ontario
6.ll Patient ComPass - JulY

20t7 (exfiact)
6.12 Release dated June 13,

2017 re CPSO defends
patients' rights to access

health services

6.13 Various media re:
physicians

College of Physiotherapists of Ontørio
6.14 Extract from PersPectives

}./lay 2017

961

928

987

992

1000

1006

1013

1016

1024



CouncilAgenda -September 16, 2017 (Public) I

SEcTloNg
OF THE

CoDEFoR
lN-
CAMERA

SEsstoNs

'FDIRECTED

BY

CouNctL

No.
Page ITEM

1031

1035

1037

1039

1042

1046

1053

Action
Required

Action By Priority
Level 3

ege o

6.15 Information re: Running
for Council (August 2017)

College of Veterinarians of Ontario
6.16 Communication dated July

10,2017 re: Open
Consultation on Achieving
a Modern Approach to the
Regulation of VeterinarY
Medicine in Ontario s

6.17 Toronto Star article August
23,2017 re: Realtors

MOHLTC Postings
6.18 Regulatory RegistrY Alert

dated August 28,2017 rc:
amendments to Health
Insurance Act and

Schedule of Benefits
6.19 Regulatory RegistrY Alert

dated August 29,20t7 re:
regulation of diagnostic
medical sonograPhers
under CMRTO

6.20 Grey Areas (June and

summer 2017)
6.2I Council Member Terms

Chart (August 20t7)

Dnre AND TIME or Meerlrues 6

s Being reviewed by the Quality Assurance Committee.
u pleaie mark your Calendar and Advise Rose Bustria ASAP if you are unable to attend any meetings.

Executive Gommittee Meeting Dates to October 2018

All Executive Committee meetings are at CCO and are scheduled from g:00 a,m,'4:00 p,m, unless otherwise

noted.



CouncilAgenda -September 16, 2017 (Public) 10

Year Date Time Event Location

2017 Tuesday, October 31 8:00a.m.-4P.m Meeting cco

2018 Tuesday, January 16 8:00a.m.-4p.m Meeting cco

Tuesday, March 20

(regrets from Dr.

Anderson-Peacock)

8:00a.m.-4p.m Meeting cco

Tuesday, May 15 8:00a.m.-4p.m. Meeting cco

Tuesday, August 14 8:00a.m.-4p.m. Meeting cco

Tuesday, October 30 8:00 a.m. -4 p.m. Meeting cco

Council Meeting Dates
All Council meet¡ngs are at

to December 2018
CCO and are scheduled from 8:30 a,m, - 4:30 p.m, unless otherwise noted.

Year Date Time Event Location

2017 Friday, September 15 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. Strategic Planning/
Topic Specific

Focused Meeting

Delta Hotel, Kingston Waterfront
1 Johnson Street
Kingston, ontario K7L 5H7

Saturday, September

L6

8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m Council Meeting Delta Hotel

Sunday, September 17 8:30 a.m. - 12 noon Strategic Planning/
Topic Specific

Focused Meeting (as

required)

Delta Hotel

Thursday, November

30

8:30 a.m, - 4:30 p.m. Council Meeting cco

Friday, December 1 8:30 - 1 p.m. Council Focused

meeting
(Communications)

cco

Friday, December 1 Evening Holiday Party Opus Restaurant {37 Prince Arthur
Ave.)

2018 Tuesday, FebruarY 20 8:30 a,m. - 4:30 P.m' Council Meeting cco

Tuesday, April 24 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 P.m. Council Meet¡ng cco



CouncilAgenda -September 16, 2017 (Public) 11

SEcÎoNB
OF THE

CoDEFoR
lN-
CAMERA

SEsgtoNg
,F
DIRECTED

BY

CouNctL

Page
No.

ITEM Action
Required

Action By Priority
Level 3

Wednesday, April 25 8:30a.m.-2p.m. Council Meeting
(Orientation/
Elections)

cco

Tuesday, June 19 6:00 p.m Annual General

Meeting

TBD

Wednesday, June 20 8:30 a,m, -4:30 P.m. Council Meeting cco

Friday, September 14 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 P,m Strategic Planning/
Topic Specific

Focused Meet¡ng

TBD

Saturday, September

15

8:30 a.m. -4:30 P.m. Council Meeting TBD

Sunday, September 16 8:30 a.m. - 12 noon Strategic Planning/
Topic Specific

Focused Meeting (as

required)

TBD

Thursday, November

29

8:30 a,m. -4:30 P.m. Council Meeting cco

Friday, November 30 Evening Holiday Party TBD



ITEM 1.1
Submitted, Ausust 24, 2017

College of Chiropractors of Ontario
Discipline Committee Report to Council
Saturday, September 16, 2017

9

Gore Members: Ms Judith McCutcheon, Chair
Dr. Reginald Gates

Dr. David Starmer
Dr. Pat Tavares
Dr. Daniela Arciero, non-Council member
Dr. Angela Bdrrow, non-Council member
Dr. Liz Gabison, non-Council member
Dr. Colin Goudreau, non-Council member
Dr. Roberta Koch, non-Council member
Dr. Matt Tribe, non-Council member

Staff Support: Ms Jo-Ann Willson, Registrar and General Counsel

Since the last council meeting there have been no committee meetings.

Three hearings have been held since the last Council meeting.

a

a

a

a Dr. Barbara Ellis - August I,2017 (Resolution Agreement)
Panel: Mr. Doug Cressman, Dr.Liz Gabison, Dr. David Starmer and Ms Judith

McCutcheon as chair.

Dr. Kenneth Oldaker - August 2,2017 (Resolution Agreement)
Panel: Mr. Doug Cressman, Dr. David Starmer, Dr. Pat Tavates, Dr. Matt Tribe
and Ms Judith McCutcheon as chair.

Dr. Byron Atchison- August 2,2017 (Resolution Agreement)
Panel: Mr. Doug Cressman, Ms. Judith McCutcheon, Dr. Pat Tavares, Dr. Matt
Tribe and Dr. David Starmer as chair.

A hearing for the Dr. David Sangster matter is scheduled for Decenber 4-7,2017
(inclusive). The panel will be composed of Ms McCutcheon as chair, Drs.
Arciero, Barrow, Starmer and Mr. Doug Cressman.

There have been a number of prehearings held which will proceed to hearings shortly.

Two çontested hearings are scheduled for later in the autumn:

A hearing for the Dr. David Healey is scheduled for November 6&7,2017 . The
panel will be composed of Ms McCutcheon as chair, Drs. Goudreau, Tavares,

Tribe and Mr. Doug Cressman.



Discipline Committee Report to Council: September 16,2017 10 2

The Federation of Health Regulatory Colleges of Ontario (FHRCO) is holding its next
Discipline Orientation on October 26,2017 (Basic) and October 27,2017 (Advanced).
Just a reminder that according to our bylaws, every member of Council is a member of
the Discipline Committee and as such may be called upon to serye on an upcoming panel.
Therefore, if any Council members are interested in the above training in order to
enhance the skills which would better enable them to serve, please contact Ms Rose
Bustria.

The work of the Discipline Committee is vital to protecting the public interest and I
would like to thank the members of the Discipline'Committee for their time and
Dedication: Dr. Daniela Arciero, Dr. Angela Barrow, Mr. Doug Cressman, Dr.Liz
Gabison, Dr. Colin Goudreau, Dr. Roberta Koch, Dr. David Starmer, Dr. Pat Tavares and
Dr. Matt Tribe. In addition, I would also like to extend my thanks to all members of
council who are willing to serve on panels.

Respectfully submitted,

Ms Judith McCutcheon
Chair, Discipline Committee



11D¡SCIPLINE COMMITTEE

OF THE COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO

ITEM 1.1.1
BETWEEN

CoLLEGE OF GHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO ("CCO")

-and-

DR. BARBARA ELLIS

RESOLUTION AGREEMENT

EXHIBITI'Io
a

E)(AMINATIONOF-

vs 4
DATE

COTLEOEOF 0FsrlAßro

1



2

12
coLLEcE OF CHTROPRACTORS OF ONTARTO (,,CCO")

-and-

DR. BARBARA ELLIS

RESOLUTION AGREEMENT

PA,RT 1 . AGREED STATEMENT OF FACTS

Backqround

1. Dr. Barbara Ellis ("Member") became a member of the college of
Chiropractors of Ontario ("CCO") in 1g94.

2. During the relevant period, the Member practiced chiropractic at Westney
Heights chiropractic clinic, a chiropractíc office in Ajax, ontario.

3. The Member has no prior complaints or discipline history at the cco

Re: Concurrent Sexual and Professional Relationship with Patient,'A,'

4' ln February 1996, the Member began providing chiropractic treatment to a
patient known as "Patient 4." She continued to treat Patíent A until

February 2016. During that 20 year period, the Member also treated patient

A's wife and his children.

5. ln 2014, during a treatment at the Member's chiropractic office, the Member

and Patient A kissed. Following that, patient A and the Member began

having a sexual relatíonship. The sexual relationship included sexual

intercourse and other forms of physical sexual relations and continued until (.



3

February 2016.

13
6. The Member admits that she had a concurrent sexual and professional

relationship with patient A and that she therefore sexually abused Patient 4.,

as alleged in allegation 1 in the Notice of Hearing dated March 27,2017

('NOH',).

7. The Member also admits that, based on the facts set out above, she

committed acts of professional misconduct as alleged in the NOH, and in

particular, she:

a. contravêned a standard of practice of the profession or failed to

maintain the standard of practice expected of members of the

profession as set out in allegation 2; and

b. engaged in conduct or performed an act that, having regard to all of

the circumstances, would reasonably be regarded by members as

disgraceful, dishonourable and unprofessional, as set out in allegation

4.

Withdrawalg

B. The CCO withdraws allegation 3 in the NOH

lndeoendent Leoal Advice

9. The Member acknowledges that she received advice from her counsel,

Valeríe Wise, prior to entering into this Resolution Agreement. The Member

agrees that she is entering into this Resolution Agreement and signing the

Agreed Statement of Facts freely and voluntarily.



4

D s ate s

CC Date ess

14

\r

t



5

coLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO ("CCO")

-and-
EXHIBIT 1'¡o

15

"{
EXAilINATIOiIOF .

DR. BARBARA ELLIS ("Member") t( vs

RESOLUTION AGREEMENT
COITEGE OF CHNOPR¡¡TOFS OF Oî{TAfrIO

PART 2 - JOINT SUBMISSION ON PENALTY AND COSTS

ln víew of the Agreed Statement of Facts and the findings of professional

misconduct, the CCO and the Member jointly request that the panel of the

Discipline Committee make an Order:

1. Requiring the Member to appear before the panel to be reprimanded

2. Directing the Registrar to revoke the Member's certificate of

registration.

3. Requiring the Member to reimburse the CCO for funding provided to

Patient A under the program required under section 85.7 of the Health

Professions Procedural Code.

4. Requiring that the results of the proceeding be recorded in the public

portion of the Regíster and publíshed in the Annual Report or other

publications at the discretion of the CCO.

5. Requiring the Member to pay to the CCO $7,500.00 by December 31,

2017 with the Member to provide post-dated cheques for the amount at

this hearing.

The Member agrees that she will not appeal or ask for judicial review of the



616
decision by the Discipline Committee in relation to the March 27,2017 Notice of

Hearing so long as the panel of the Discipline Committee accepts this Joint

Submission on Penalty and Costs. ln the event that this Joint Submission is not

accepted by the Discipline Committee, the Member and the CCO agree that the

Member reserves the right to request an adjournment and to call evidence and

make additional submissions.

The Member acknowledges that she received advice from her counsel, Valerie

Wise, prior to entering into this Resolution Agreement, and affirms that she is

signing the Joint Submission on Penalty and Costs freely and voluntarily.

Dr. Ellis Date Witness

ee t?
t

Date Witness

I



ITEM 1.1-2

DISCI PLINE CO]VIMITTEE
OF THE CÛLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO

COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO

-and-

DR. KENNETH OLDAKER

RESOLUTION AGREEMENT

gHlB{T1'¡o 1
txt¡JlilATtol'l0t æ

a

17

BETWEEN

c

DAfE
{î

OOILEOE OF CHIROPRMruRS OF OI¡TARIO



Resolution Agreement
CCO and Dr. Kenneth Oldaker

2

COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO

-and-

DR. KENNETH OLDAKER

RESOLUTION AGREEMENT PART 1 - AGREED STATEMENT OF FACTS

Backgroun!

1' Dr. Kenneth Oldaker became a member of the College of Chiropractors of
Ontario ("CCO) in 1975. He maintained chiropractic offices in Kapusakasing,
Ontario, and Hearst, Ontario.

2. Dr. oldaker was the subject of a Discipline committee hearing on
February 15,2A12 as a result of a failure to be peer assessed when required and
a failure to co-operate with the lnquiries, Complaints and Reports Cornmittee
when il required an explanation for his failure to be peer assessed. The
Discipline Cornmittee made findings of professional misconduct and ordered,
among other things, a suspension and remedial measures.

3- ln February 2012, prior to the Discípline Committee hearing, Dr. Oldaker
signed an Undertaking to the Registrar in which he undertook to rãspond in a
timely way to all cco correspondence and co-operate fully with all cco
investigations.

4- On March 1, 2A12, as a result of his failure 1o pay his annual renewal fees
lar 2012 or complete an annual renewal forrn, Dr. oldaker's Certificate of
Registration ("Certificate") was administratively suspended and remained
suspended until February 2A17, at which tlme his Certifícate was adrninistratively
revoked.

The Complaint and the Comgl?int lnvestiqatiqg

5. On December 14,2015, the CCO received a complaint that Dr. Oldaker
was practicing chiropractic despite the suspension of his certif¡cate.

6. The CCO conducted an investigation which disclosed that after March
2012, Dr. Oldaker continued to practice chiropractic out of his two chiropractic
offices as though he was a member of the CCO. He continued to see patients,
including diagnosing patíents and providing thern v,rith chiropractic adjustrnents

18



Resolution Agreement
CCO and Dr. Kenneth Oldaker

3

19
7 . As well, from 2012 to June 2017 , Dr. Oldaker continued to advertise
himself as a chiropractor. As of June 2017, the sÍgn outside of Dr. Oldaker's

cliníc in Kapuskasing read:

Chiropractic Centre
Ken Oldaker DC
Chiropractor

B. As of June 2017, the sign outside of Dr. Oldaker's clinic in Hearst read:

Chiropractor
KJ Oldaker
Chiropracticien

g. Dr. Oldaker identified himself on his invoices as a Chiropractor, and h¡s

invoices indicated he provided patients with adjustments-

10. After Marcn 1 ,2Ð12, Dr. Otdaker never told his patients his Certificate was
suspended or revoked, and he never told his patients he was not a chiropractor
and could not legally perForm the controlled acts, including diagnosing and
adjustments, that chiropractors are entitled to provide.

The Reqistrar'o lnvestiqation

11. On January 27,2016, the CCO sent a letter to Dr. Oldaker, notifying him
that a complaint had been made about hirn and requesiìng a written response to
the complaint in 30 days. After that letter was sent, the CCO:

a. sent 3 more letters requiring Dr, Oldaker to respond in writing to the
complaint; and

b. called Dr. Oldaker, confirmed he received the CCO
correspondence regarding the complaint, and advised him to
respond in writing to the cornplaint,

12. Dr. Oldaker never responded in writíng to the complaint as he was
required to do.

19. On $eptember 20, 2Q16, the CCO investigator who was investigating the
compla¡nt requested Dr, Oldaker provide her with the original patient records for
patients he had treated during the period ZAn -2016. He was given a week
and a half to provide the records but he did not provide them.

14. The CCO investigator followed up with a request on October 3,2016 and
on Octobe r 17 , 2016 but Dr. Oldaker did not provide the requested records.



Resolution Agreement
CCO and Dr. Kenneth ONdaker 20
15. A CCO investigator attended at Dr. Oldaker's Clinic in Kapuskasing on
November 8,2016 wíth a summons for the patient records. Dr. Oldaker refused
to obey the summons and provide the patient records.

16. Dr. Oldakerwâs advised that he had until Novernber 18 to provide the
records, or the CCO invesligator woulcl obtain a search warrant and seize the
patieni records.

17 ' Dr. Oldaker ultimately provided the CCO investígator with the patient
records on November 21, 2016.

CQP Leq¡slation and Standaqd.s

18. While Dr. Oldaker's Certíficate was suspended during the period March 1,
2412 b February 2017, he rernaíned subject to the CCO's jurisdiction for
professional misconduct that occurred during the period of the suipension, as a
result of section 14(?) of the Health Professions Procedural Code (the "Code").

19' Section 13(2) of the Code states a person whose certificate of registration
has been suspended is not a member of the CCO.

2a' Under the Chiropractic Act, 1991, only members of the CCO can use the
title "chiropraÇtor" and can hold themselves out as persons who are qualified to
practice chiropractic in Ontario. Persons are prohibited by the Chíropractìc Act,
199-? and lhe Regulated Health Professrbns Acf from performing conirolled acts
such as diagnosing and adjusting, unless they are members of sþecific regulated
health profession colleges.

2_1^ _ Sectíon 76(3.1) of the Code requires a mernber tÒ co-operate fully with a
CCO investigator.

22. cco standard s-020; cooperation and communication with cco
required Dr. Oldaker to cooperate with the CCO and its statutory commiüees.
According to that Standard, it was Dr. Oldaker's professional reåponsibility to
cooperate in a timely manner when CCO made requests for information and
wherr it required a specific action such as providing a written response to a
complaint to the lnquírÍes, cornplaínts and Reports committee.

Adnrissions

23. Dr, Oldaker admits he breached the Regulated Health Professrbn s Act
and the Chiropractic Actby

a. using the title "chiropractor" contrary to subsection g.(1) of the
Chiropractic Acl, I 991 :

4



Resolution Agreement 5

CCO and Dr. Kenneth Oldaker

b. holdirrg hirnself out as a person who is qualified to practise in
Ontario as a chiropractor contrary to subsection 9,(2) of the
Chiropractic Ac( I 99 1 ;

c. performing controlled acts authorized to chíropraciic, contrary to
section 4 of the Qhiropractic Act, 1991;

d, performing a controlled act or acts in the course of providing health

care services to an individual contrary to subsection2T.(1) of the
Regulated Health Professiotts Act, 1991;

e. using the title "doctor" in the course of providing or offering to
provide health care to individuals, contrary to subsectíon 33.(1) of
the Regulated Health Professibns Ac{ 1991;

f. treating or advising persons with respect to his or her health in
circurnstances where it was reasonably foreseeable that serious
physical harm may resuli from the treatment or advice or from the
omission frpm them, contrary to subsection 30.(1) of the Regulated
Health Professions,4c{ 1991: and

g. failing to co-operaÌe with the CCO investigator contrary to Sectiotr
76(3.1)of the Code.

24. Dr. Oldaker also admits he faìled to respond in a timely way when requÍred
to provide a written response to the complaint and that this was in breach of the
Undertaking he provided to the Registrar in 2012. He also breached the
Undertaking by not co-operating fully with the CCO investigation.

?5. Dr. Oldaker admits that he committed acts of professional misconduct as
set out in the Notice of Hearing regarding the Complaint of Eclipse Financial
dated March 27,2017, and in particular he:

a. contravened a standard of praciice of the profession or failed to
rnaintain the standard of practice expected of rnembers of the
professio.n as set out in Allegation 1;

b. contravened a federal, provincial or territorial law, a municipal by-
law or a by-law or rule of a hospital within the meaning of the Public
Hospitals,Acl, and the contravention was relevant to his suitability
to practÍse as set out in Allegation 2; and

c. engaged in conduct or pedormed an act, that, having regard to all
the circumstances, would reasonably be regarded by members as

disgraceful, dishonou rable 
.pt 

u¡professional as set out Ín Allegation
3 üA^ù

21

\'t)')



22
nromotr e¡rrrm t
CCO rnd & -lenndr 

O¡Cor

¡t, 0r" 01fr¡r rdrrüû ütt Ð dilläX lgr or plot¡r¡oad r,niromdr¡c ¡nffi h¡/r -***
¡ cartìfüüt I nrrtræ of gf|ct€ d rît Drüt6rion q, Ê¡¡ e"q!-1lúrú ot ¡n¡6¡¡ç3 ".p.d; ;,rù.., of $rFtrdü rl td a¡ ., ¡fræ¡on l.
! tü¡n*ffi Èilrrrrd ¡nro nrû ür ccb' rû

c lrtffi h:|!!ã r prt¡m¡c 
|P frr th* h¡,rÍre Ë¡ÐÉ Þ lñllrqE tflotrfræ,f

Fill:ãffiñ'
üffi¡ËiþiÞ \fù
;' 3 3d*üïFrsürrrrrhen!.qùyrr¡ccobühf.rupnfflæffifffir.ffi.ã,ffi ffi L.r'-'¡r Ë¡ sñì;iJ

.---.€

]

¡



Fæo¡"Con å0rnt.rnarH
CCO lr¡d ûr XËnruü CI$rtorr

'r

ÐoLultolr Âo¡Eilnr mt? i . Jüfr üln}tottoil pnü,,î?
F rür Þ ttr .lrç 1{, fntl 9*ürlç çoflft,,nil hdd bftn Ð? D,,p Fdlr,r{ n vir' 0f ¡¡¡ l¡ruro &.'r..t 

"! 
Ë.* irå c"Ë L grroræo ¡Ot!¡trÞ fTæ1 ¡nC f ññn å *¡lr lüïry;órili¡ ür r¡1Í 0t ürrulrË corûtrr rdtr rn orocr '-'n vr

l. ãrur¡f rr fuç*r b rûûlr hr antlorûr dapnen
2 nrç¡rne e. ol(I¡r_ !_prr, I portoo { cc{Ir ,nl.|ültiha.rü t{dsrr¡ ¡ì $ü :!o,n'' of ¡?,5û0 00 nñr'a{ì s *n t n rilr ot ürr od',
r nnr¡u s¡tjtr *uh ot rrr proaro*r¡ tr ltcoñtrl h üìr p.åat3goffoo dür Rïr¡f H rnûhrnú ¡r nã sn,.ü.pe-r q il'rtrôacüð r tlf ftñrþn d ¡lrr CCO.

ù, Oûlrrr lprl fr* h. tìr. þ.fi rlf,ir¡d þy tln ftO p shþl nOgndrlrt ¡,nårÐ'loiÞ¡qqe fñ ür n .ûr*'iÀññä*,cürrñrÌîh.on'ü cco'rrû Þ öù5 a."r, s¡r lr r rart¡ nrr'n ãÃlon'ñü r€ r¡rtrs ï¡ r-! s'¡,tt *-, -r p";õ Ëiry üd nr¡rm,

corLtE gr ctmFtrrËTgtrt ðf oüfitní0

-¡rd-

0R. t(Exil:rx otûx(En

E)(Hlillt'lo

EXAIflìLATloi¡0F

(,'

23

t
v$

' 
cotLE0E or 0HH0PR$T0RS 0tCNTANþ



|TEM 1.1.3

DISCIPLINE COMMITTEE

OF THE COLLEGE OF GHIROFRACTORS OF ONTARIO-

24

BETWEEN:

COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO

-and-
EXHBffilo

DR. BYRON ATCHISON
EXÁl¡lNAIOit0F

l,s

DATE

RESOLUTION AGREEMENT COffGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF Oî{TANÍ O

4

al
r(

{

1



2

COLLEGE OF CH¡ROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO

-and-
25

DR. BYRON ATCHISON

RESOLUTION AGREEMENT

PART 1 . AGREED STATEMENT OF FACTS

Bacßqround

1. Dr. Byron Atchison ("Member") became a member of the College of

Chiropractors of Ontario ('CCO') in 1981 .

2. During the relevant period, the Member practiced chiropractic at his

chiropractic office, Huron and Highbury chiropractic clinic ("clinic"), in

London, Ontario.

Notice of Hearinq dated March 29, 2017 re: Mav 24. 2016_Comptaint

3. ln July 2010, the Member began treating a patient known as "Patient C." ln
August 2013, Patient C suffered catastrophic injuries in a motor vehicle

accident. The Member continued to treat Patient C after the accident.

4. on July 11, 2014, as part of a personal injury legal proceeding, patient c's
lawyer requested the Member provide her with a copy of Patient C's

complete chiropractic record. The Member provided Patient C's chiropractic

record as requested on September 11, 2014.

5. On July 7,2015, Patient C's lawyer requested the Member provide updated

chiropractic records for Patient C. The Member did not respond to the

request.



26
6. On September 17,2015 and December 22,2015, Patient C's lawyer again

requested the Member provide Patient C's updated chiropractic records.

The Member never responded to these requests.

7 . On Janua ry 25,2016, Patient C's lawyer requested a fourth time that the

Member provide copy of Patient C's updated chiropractic records' The

Member provided the records on February 2,2016, seven months after the

first request for the updated chiropractic records was made.

B. On reviewing the updated chiropractic records, Patient C's lawyer discovered

they were significantly different from the records initially provided by the

Member on September 1 1,2014. Specifically, there were eight treatments

documented for the period January 2014 - April 2014 in the updated

chiropractic records that had not appeared in the original records.

g. The lawyer's office contacted the Member on March 9,2016 regarding the

discrepancies and the Member advised the lawyer's office to discard the

records provided on September 11 ,2014. The Member was informed that

the lawyer's office could not discard records, and, in any event, they had

already been disclosed to the parties in Patient C's personal injury litigation.

The Member then requested the office to disregard the records provided on

February 2,2016. He said his staff was having some issues regarding billing

and that Patient C's chart had been amended to match the billings.

10. Later that day, the Member called the lawyer's office. He advised he had

been angry because Patíent C had missed chír'opractic appointments and

the statutory scheme for accident benefits did not permit the Member to bill

the insurer for missed appoíntments. He stated he therefore bílled the

insurer for appointments that Patient C had missed and re-created Patient

C's chiropractic records to include false documentation indicating Patient C

had attended appointments that he had actually missed.

3



4

27
1 1. On March 17,2016, at Patíent C's lawyer's request, the Member paid Patient

C $41 1.04 for the eight billed missed visíts.

12. Patient C complained to the CCO and to the Financial Services Çommission

of ontario (.FSCO") regarding the Member's conduct. The Member

consented to the revocation of his provider licence by the Superintendent of
FSCO.

13. The Member admits that in 2014, he billed the insurer for at least seven

appointments that Patient c missed between January 22,2014 and April g,

2014 and accepted payment from the insurer for those appointments.

14.The Member admits that, after he provided a copy of patient C's original

chiropractic records to Patient C's lawyer in september 2014, he altered

Patient C's oríginal chiropractic records to document providing treatment on

the dates Patient c had missed appointments, so it wourd appear that

Patient C actually attended the Cliníc and received chíropractic treatment

from the Member on the missed appoíntment dates. The Member then

burned the original chiropractic treatment notes

15. The Member also admits that he received the correspondence from Patient

C's lawyer requesting updated chiropractic records for Patient C on July 7,

2015, September 17,2015, December22,2015 and January25,2016, but

did not provide the updated chiropractic records until February 2,2016.

16. Given the above facts, the Member admits that he committed acts of
professional misconduct as set out in the Notice of Hearing dated March 2g,

2017 re: Complaint dated îVlay 24,2016, and ín particular, he:

a contravened a standard of practice of the profession or faired to



5

maintain the standard of practice expected of members of the

profession as set out in Allegation 1; 28

b. failed to keep records as required by the regulations as set out in

Allegation 2;

c. falsified a record relating to his practice as set out in Allegation 3;

d. failed, without reasonable cause, to provide a report or certificate

relating to an examínation or treatment he performed within a

reasonable time after it was requested, as set out in Allegation 4;

e. signed or issued, in his professional capacity, a document that he

knew contained a false or misleading statement as set out in Allegation

5;

f. submitted an account or charge for services that he knew was false or

misleading as set out in Allegation 6; and

g. engaged in conduct or performed an act, that, having regard to allthe

circumstances, would reasonably be regarded by members as

disgraceful, dishonourable and unprofessional as set out in Allegation

7.

Noúíces of Hearino March 29. 7 re: March 2016 and

Mav 25. 2016 oatient t

17.The Member admits that he used profanity, and made comments that were

extremely unprofessional and offensive in front of, and to, patients known as

'Patient A" and "Patient B" and an employee known as "Employee 2."

1B.The Member therefore admits that he committed acts of professional



6 29
m¡sconduct as set out in the Notice of Hearing dated March 2g,2017 re
Complaint received March 23,ZAj6, and in particular, he:

a' contravened a slandard of practÍce of the profession or fairecJ to
maintain the standard of practice expected of members of the
profession as set out in Allegation 2; and

b. engaged in conduct or performed an act, that, having regard to aü the
circumstances, wourd reasonabry be regarded by members as
dísgraceful, dishonourable and unprofessional as set or¡t in Allegation
4.

lVi-thdrawals

19. The cco wíthdraurs Ailegations 1 and 3 in the Noiice of Hearing clated
March 29,2017 re: Complaint received lvlarch n.2A16.

20. The cco withdraws the Notice of Hearing datecr March zg, ze17 Re: May
?5, 2A16 Patient Çomptaint

Qther

21'The Member acknowledges that he received advice fronr his counsel, Valerie
wise, prior"to entering into this Resolutign Agreenrent. The Member agrees
that he ís entering into this Resorution Agreenient and signing rhe Agreed
Statement of Facts freely and voluntarily.

te

Date
a

Witness

Prehea rson Date WitnessCha

COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO



7n

)
l)(HlBfIllo

-and- EXAilMN${OF#

VS

DR. BYRON ATCHISON DATE

COIIEGE OF CHIHOPRACTORS OF OI.ITARIO

RESOTUTION AGREEMENT 30

PART 2 - JOINT SUBMISSION ON PENALTY AND COSTS

ln view of the prehearíng conference held before Dr. Drew Potter on June 26,

2017, the Agreed Statement of Facts and admissions contained in Part 1 of this

Resolution Agreement, the findings of professional misconduct, and the

Undertaking appended to this Joint Submissíon as Apperìdix "4", the CCO and

the Member jointly request that the panel of the Discipline Committee make an

Order:

1. Requiríng the Member to appear before the panel to be reprimanded.

2. Directing the Registrar and General Counsel ("Registrar") to suspend the

Member's certificate of registration for a period of twelve months.

3. Directing the Registrar to impose the following terms, conditions and

limitations ("Conditions") on the Member's certificate of registration:

a on or before June 2,2018, the Member must:

review, and agree in writing to comply with, all CCO regulations,

standards of practice, policies and guidelines, including but not limited

to CCO Standard of Practice 5-002: Record Keeping; CCO Standard

of Practice 5-022: Ownership, Storage, Security and Destruction of

Records of Personal Health lnformation; CCO Policy P-003: Principles



3t
of zero Tolerance; the busíness practices portion of the Misconduct

Regulation; and CCO Guidelíne G-008: Business Practices;

provide evidence that he has successfully passed, without conditions

and at hís own expense, the ProBe Ethics and Boundaries program

with a focus on recognizing and maintaining appropriate patient

relationships and professional boundaries; and

provide evidence that he has successfully completed, at his own

expense, the Legislation and Ethics Examination and the Record

Keepíng Workshop.

b. Requiring the Member to be peer assessed at his own expense withín six

months of returning to practice after the lifting of the suspension.

4. Directing the Registrar to suspend two months of the suspension if the

Member successfully completes the conditions set out in paragraph 3a.

above, on or before June 2,2018.

5. Requiring that the results of the proceeding be recorded in the public portion

of the Register and published in the Annual Report or other publications at the

discretion of the CCO.

6. Requíring the Member to pay to the cco $15,000.00 by December 31 , 2o1T

with the Member to provide post-dated cheques for the amount at this

hearing.

The Member acknowledges that he received advice from his counsel, Valerie

Wise, prior to entering ínto this Resolution Agreement, and affirms that he is

signing the Joint Submission on Penalty and Costs freely and voluntarily.

8

il

lil



u 32

WitnessDateson

Witness

ügq,"trruuø
'ib

Date

Prehearing Chairperson Date

,, /o
Witness



UNDERTAK¡NG
Exhibit "A" 33

To: The Registrar and General Counsel (o.Registrar")
of the College of Chiropractors of Ontario (,,CCO,')

l, Dr. Byron Atchison, underiake to the Registrar and agree to do the following:

1. On or before June 2, 2018, I will provide:

a. a written undertakíng to the Registrar confirming that I have
reviewed, and will comply with all cco regulations, standards of
practice, guidelines and policies including but not limited to cco
Standard of Practice 5-002: Record Keeping; CCO Standard of
Practice s-022: ownership, storage, security and Destruction
of Records of Personal Health lnformation; CCO policy p-003:
Princíples of zero Tolerance; the business practices portion of
the Misconduct Regulation; and CCO Guideline G-00g:
Business Practices;

b. written evidence to the Registrar that I have successfully
completed the cco's Legislation and Ethics Examination and
have attended the CCO's Record Keeping Workshop at my own
expense;

c. written evidence that I have successfully passed, without
conditions and at my own expense, the proBe Ethícs and
Boundaries Program with a focus on recognizing and
maintaining appropriate patient relationships and professional
boundaries.

I will be peer assessed at my own expense wíthin 6 months after
returning to practice following the lifting of the suspension of my
Certificate of Registration.

3. I will pay to the cco $15,000.00 by December 31,2CI17 for the partial
payment of its costs and expenses, and I will provide the cco with
post dated cheque(s) for that amount at my Discipline committee
hearing.

I agree not to appeal or ask for a judicial review of the decísion of the
Discipline committee regarding the allegations set out in the March 2g,
2017 Notíces of Hearing so long as the panel of the Discipline
committee accepts the Joint submission on penarty and costs

2

4

lr



234
contained in my Resolution Agreement with the CCO. ln the event that

the Joint Submission on Penalty and Costs is not accepted by the

Discipline Committee, I reserve the right to request an adjournment,

call evidence, and make additional submissions.

5. I acknowledge that failure to abide by any of the terms of this

Undertaking could result ín the referral of specified allegations of

professional misconduct to the Discipline Committee.

I have been advised by the CCO to obtain legal advice prior to executing this

Undertaking and have obtained the advice of my counsel, Valerie Wise of Wise

Health Law. I am executing this Undertaking freely and voluntarily after reading

and understanding its contents.

Signed this 2nQ day of August, 2017
t

Dr n lsonh itness Signature



læ-4ãlæß!WFÊr.

$å j o*Pso

rrEM 1.1 .4 35

CONDUCTING A
DISCIPLINE HEARINGFederation of Health RegulatorY

Colleges of Ontario

Thursday, October 26, 2At7

Osgoode Professional
Development Centre

1 Dundas St W, 26th Floor
Toronto ON MsG 1-23

Faculty
Brian Gover/Luisa Ritacca

Stockwoods LLP &
Richard Steinecke

Steinecke Maciura LeBlanc

Discipline Orientation Committee
¡ Tina Langlois, College

of Medical Radiation
Technologists of Ontario
(chaír)

o Aoife Coghlan, College of
Occupational Therapists of
Ontario

. Genevieve Plummer,
Ontario College of
Pharmacísts

r Ravi Prathivathi, College of
Nurses of Ontario

. lris Samson, College of
Audiologists and Speech-
La nguage Pathologists of
Ontario

8:30 a.m. - 9:0û a.m.
Registration and
LIG HT CONTI NENTAL BRËAKFAST

9:00 a.m. - 9:30 a.m.
lntroduction and Legal Framework
Topics include: applicable
legíslation, jurisdiction, the public
interest, confi dentiality, disclosure,
allegations, penalties and costs

9:30 a.m. - L0:00 a.m.
Video of a Discipline Hearing

10:00 a.m, - 10:30 a"m.
Principles of Administrative Law
Topics include: nature of a hearing,
natural justice, transparency, burden
of proof and accountabílity

10:30 ã.m. -.10:45 a.m. BREAK

10:45 a.m.-- 11:00 a.m.
Fitness to Practice (FTP)

Topics include: how the FTP process
differs from discipline, definition of
inca pacity

11;00 a.m. -' 1L:3û a"m.
Pre-Hearing Procedures
Role play will focus on the Pre-

Hearing Conference and the goal

of narrowing the issues, coming to
an agreed statement of fact, and
developing joint submissions on
pen a lty

11:30 a.m. - 12:15 p.m.
Roles of Various Participants in the
Hearing Process
Discussíon will focus on the roles
of panel members, prosecution
and defence counsel, independent
lega I counsel, intervenors, med ia,

experts, witnesses, court reporters,
and staff

12:15 p.m, - 1:00 p.m. LUNCH
(provided)

1:00 p.m. - 2:30 p.m.
The Discipline Hearing
Through role play, attendees
will experience an abbreviated
contested hearing

2:30 p.m. -2:45 p.m. BREAK

2:45 p.m. - 3:00 p.m.
The Discipline Hearing (continued)

3:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m.
Responsibilities of Panel Members
Discussion willfocus on panel
member conduct prior to, during,
and after the hearing by using
real case examples of situations
where panel member conduct is

questioned

4:00 p.m. * 4:15 p.rn.

Concluding Remarks and Evaluation

1.,:,..;¡i.i...;,:i'.i:' -,..i,,,...r..'¡..,,'r'1i;i-l . I i,

All registrations will be confirmed via fax or email within five (5) business days

of receipt of the form. lf you do not receive a confirmation, please contact the
Federation offíce by phone (416-493-4076),fax (1-866-814-6456), or

em a i | ( i nfo @ regu lated h ea lth p rofess ions. o n. ca )

5ee Regisirafj¡-,n Fûrnì for r¿ìLr,.s arrd pavment informatiort.
: . . '. ..:.i,, ,,- t',,,r,-;li ;,:.,.,,;...,,i.',...-¡.'rl:r1



ORPSO
Federation of Health Regulatory

Colleges of Ontario
Friday, October 27, 2gL7

8:30 a.m. - 4:L5 p.m.

Osgoode Professional
Development Centre

1 Dundas St W, 26th Floor
Toronto ON MsG 123

Faculty
Brian Gover/Luisa Ritacca

Stockwoods LLP

&
Richard Steinecke

Steinecke Maciura LeBlanc

Committee

on

al Therapists of

Plummer, Ontario
College of Pharmacists

r Ravi Prathivathi, College of
Nurses of Ontario

o tris Samson, College of
Audiologists and Speech-
Language Pathologists of
Ontario

CONDUCTING A
DISCIPTINE HEARING

36

12:45 p.m. - 1:45 p.m.
"Only the Evidence" - Case Scenarios
Small groups will discuss and report
on how they would dealwith the
evidence and how the evidence forms
the basis for the decision

1:45 p.m. - 2:30 p.m.
"Explain Yourself" - Role PlaY
Attendees will act out the
deliberation process, highlighting the
Chair's role in leading the deliberation
process and how it is separated
from the reason-writíng process. A
perfunctory credibility assessment,
which could lead to an appeal, will be
demonstrated

2:30 p.m. -2:45 p.m. BREAK

2:45 p.m. - 3:15 p.m.
"Explain Yourself" - Role Play
The scenario contínues as facilitators
help attendees to understand the
requirements for adequate reasons in
their decisíons

3:15 p.m. - 4:00 p.m.
"No Connection with ParticiPants" -
Group Discussion using Scenarios
Scenarios will be presented which
demonstrate situations where panel
members may find themselves
unwittingly mingling with the parties
or realize that they may know a

witness from their personal or
professional lives

8:30 a.m. - 9:00 a.m.
Registration and
LIG HT CONTI N ENTAT BREAKFAST

9:00 a.m. - 9:10 a.m.
Welcome from Federation
lntroduction of Faculty and
Pa rtici pa nts

9:10 a.m. - 9:15 a.rn.
Overview of Day
lntroduction to the concePts
of controlling the proceedings,
giving parties a fair opportunity to
participate, explaining the decision,
and managing confl ícts/potential bias

9:15 a.m. - 10:45 a.m,
"Yol¡'re In Charge" - Case Scenarios
Groups of 4-6 members will consider
challenging sítuations that test the
panel's ability to be in charge of
conductíng the hearing and control
the proceedings

10:45 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. BREAK

11:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.
"Give Everyone a Chance" -
Role Play
Attendees will act out scenes which
demonstrate the first and last rule
structu re for objections, motions,
and submissions, and how the Panel
ensures fairness to the parties

12:00 p.m, - 12:45 P.m.

hair) LUNCH (Provided)
4:00 p.m. - 4:15 p.m.
Concluding Remarks and Evaluation

All registrations will be confirmed via fax or email within five (5) business days

of receipt of the form. lf you do not receive a confirmation, please contact the
Federatio n offi ce by ph o n e (476-493-407 6), fax ( 1-866-8 14-6 4561, or

ema il (info@reeulatedhealthprofessions.on.ca)

See Registration Form for rates and payment information.

This advanced program was
developed because of the success
ofthe Basic Program and an
identified need for advanced
training, lt is a "beyond-the-
basics" learning opportunity
for adjudicators. The advanced
program will help discipline
panel members develop their

lls to deal with challenging
situations while chairing
hearings and deliberatíons. The
program is intended to develop
critical thinking and the "how
to" needed to meet unique
situations. Partícipants will learn
how to confidently control the
proceedings, demonstrate fairness,
assess the evidence, facilitate
panel deliberations and ensure
adequate reasons for the decision
while meeting head-on, a complex
array of challenges that can arise in
hearings,



Conducting a l)iscipline Hearing

Basic-Octobe r 26th. / Adva nced-Octo be r 27th
Fall 2O 7 Resistratio ForrnoRPtSO

Federation of Health Regulatory
Colleges of Ontario

Contact information: (for name badge) ODr. OMr. OMs. OMrs' OOther (Please specify-) 37
Registrant's Name:

Organization:
Street Address

City Province:
Fax #:

Postal Code:

Phone #:
Registrant's Email :

Name of person completing form (if different from Registrant)

Email/Phone # of person completing form
ORegistrant OPerson completing form OBothSend registration information to

Registrant Information :

Dieta ry restrictions (e.g., a llergies) :

Have you attended a Federation Discipline Hearing Program previously? OYes ONo
Have you participated in one or more discipline hearings? OYes (1) OYes (between 2-5) OYes (6 or more) ONo

Are you *ìtting to participate in a scripted role play? OYes, Basic program OYes, Advanced program ONo

*Member rates apply to all Council, Committee Members, and Staff of Federation members

Submit completed forms to the Federation Office via:

email: info@reeulatedhealthprofessions.on.ca, or
Fax: 1-866-814-6456, or
Mail: Federation of Health Regulatory Colleges of Ontario

Suite 301- 396 Osborne St, PO Box244
Beaverton ON LOK 140

Make cheques payable to:
Federation of Health Regulatory Colleges of Ontario

Cancellation policv: Concellatíons received in writing not less thon ten (10) business days prîor to the event will receive a full refund.

Concetlotions received less thøn ten (L0) business doys witt not be refunded, but substitutíons ore permitted'

Confírmotion: AII registrotions will be confírmed via fax or email within five (5) business days of receipt of the Íorm' lf you do not

receíve a confirmotion, pleose contoct the Federotíon office by phone (416-493-4076), fax (L-866-8L4-6456), or emoil

(i nÍo @ reg u lated hea lth profess io ns.o n.ca )

TotalResular(oct2&AfterìEarly Bird (Pre-Oct. 2lRATE SCHEDULE

$szoBasic Federation Membqrt
s620Basic Non!tvl¿mber

SdzoFederation Membert'Advanced

$szo $620Non-MemberAdvanced

$gsoBasic and Advanced Federãtion Member.*

$1130$logoBasic and Advanced Non.Member
$0:00subtotal

$ o.oot3% HST (HST #S7139282s)

$0.00'TOÏAL

Session Location: Osgoode Professional Development Centre
1- Dundas St W 26th Floor, Toronto ON MSG 123



|TEM 1.1.5
Rose Bustria

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Jo-Ann Willson
Wednesday, August 02,2017 12:08 PM
Rose Bustria
FW: London Free Press: Byron Atchison Disciplinary Hearing

38

Exec, Council+ me

Jo-Ann Wlllson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL.B.
Registrar & General Counsel

College of Ghlropractors of Ontario
130 Bloor St. West, Suite 902
Toronto, ON MsS 1N5
Tel: (41 6) 922-6355 ext. 1 1 1

Fax (416) 925-9610
E-mail: ipwillson@gco.on.ca
Web S¡te: www.cco.on.ca

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential ¡nformat¡on and is intended only for the person(s) named above. Any other

distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have received this e-mail in error, please notify me immediately by reply e-mail

and delele all copies including any attachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you.

From: Jo-Ann Willson
Sent: Wednesday, August 02,2Ot712:08 PM

To: 'Bieman, Jennifer' <JBieman@postmedia.com>; Rose Bustria <RBustria@cco.on.ca>

Subject: RE: London Free Press: Byron Atchison Disciplinary Hearing

Good morning - the joint resolution agreement which was accepted by the discipline panel this morning

will be posted on CCO's website with Dr. Atchison's name. Thank you'

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M,S.W., LL.B
Registrar & General Counsel

Gollege of Ghiropractors of Ontario
130 Bloor St. West, Suite 902
Toronto, ON MsS 1N5
Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext.111
Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail: ipwillson@cco.on.ca
Web Sile: www.cco.on.ca

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the person(s) named above. Any

distr¡but¡on, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have received this e-mail in error, please notify me immediately by reply

and delete all cop¡es including any attachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you.

From: Bieman, Jennifer Imailto:J Biema n tô postmedia.com]

Sent: Wednesday, August 02,2OL7 tL:27 AM
To: Jo-Ann Willson <ipwillson@cco.on.ca>; Rose Bustria <RBustria@cco,on'ca>

Subject: London Free Press: Byron Atchison Disciplinary Hearing

other
e-mail

1

Hello Jo-Ann and Rose,



It's Jen from the London Free Press. l'm just following up on the disciplinary heaiing fo
Byron Atchison this morning. I'm hoping to get the college's decision on the numerous
allegations against him.

Unfortunately I couldn't make the trip from London to Toronto for the hearing today.

rDr

39

I'm putting together a story for tomorrow's paper and hope to hear from you soon ! I can be
reached by phone at 5i.9-667-4640 or by email.

With thanks,
Jen

Jennifer Bieman
Multimedia Journalist I London Free press

Phone: (519ll667-4G40
Email: ibiefnan @poqtmedia,com
Twitter: @jenbieman

II

2



; ì ii ì,i t'Ìl,lirr;l

NEWS LOCAL
40

Byron Atchison: local chiropractor lacing discipline hearing
By Jennifer Bieman, The London Free Press

Friday, July 28,2A171:07:58 EDT PM

A London chiropractor is facing a long list of allegations - including one for the sexual abuse of a patient - from the profession's governinç

body in Ontario.

Byron Atchison, a chiropractor at the Huron and Highbury Chiropractic Centre, is accused of professional misconduct by the College of

Chiropractors of Ontario. The allegations, spelled out in three notices of hearing by the college, involve three unnamed patients and an

employee of the clinic.

The allegations haven't been tested before the regulatory body.

Based on three complaints fìled in March and May of last year, the college alleges Atchison sexually abused a patient between April 2014

"^,i March 12,2016. He's also accused of emotionally, psychologically, verbally or physically abusing that same client.

..,e chiropractor is accused of "disgraceful, dishonourable or unprofessional" behaviourfor remarks toward an employee and two patients

between April 2014 and March 4,2016.

The college also said Atchison made billing and record-keeping mistakes with one client between Sept. 30, 2013 and Feb. 24,2016'fhe
regulator alleges he failed to keep some records and falsified others.



Atchison is söf¡êduléd to fãce the regulator's disõiplinary panet to answer to thé professional misconducT-àIËgations Wednesdãy.

"we are anticipating on proceeding by way of a joint submission with respect to all three notices of hearing," said college registrar Jo-AnnWilson, declining to elaborate further on the details.

Atchison was still seeing patients as of Friday morning. Staff said he was not available to speak with a Free press reporter during a visit to
his office. Messages left by phone and in person with his ofice staffwere not returned. 

,ill,.; ,

Atchison graduated from Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College in Toronto in 1g81 after earning his bachelor of science degree'iirm
University of Guelph, according to his website.

lf the regulator finds Atchison guilty of professional misconduct, the college could revoke or suspend his ability to practice, put conditions olimitations on his licence or formally reprimand him. Atchison could also iace a f ne of up to $35,000 or be on the hook for the college,s leg
expenses, investigation or hearing costs.

jbieman@oostmedia.com 

^ 
I.ll

This Week's Flyers

G
HOVERFORFLYER HOVERFORFLYER HOVER FORFLYER

@@uruÆ@

ríìllrÂY, !^ftiiì¡Jlf, t{tit iutiuÀy c¡¡t-y:

i,r i','ii'rl; i iliiiìl¡i i i
,"rilr 

¡Ì , ì. f liì1i

r, llr tijr i i t.l'\iriirl

3 CIllfl.

Pptcqg

.:.,\.,1 tjp r0



Lunduri chiropracior suspended I The London Free Press " Page I of3

t

rfiF ATt-Iü EW CSUZ€ H AT T,H.

l¡r'.r Â -r:ck

t llr \¡lrfll I I

NEWS LOCAL

London chiropractor Byron Atchison suspended by

professional body for misconduct

I ií"f::'iï:i",i:li llå,, 3li11"Ê3;ï"

42

Byron Atchison

A London chiropractor has been handed a one-year suspension by the profession's governing body in Ontario after admitting to

a series of professional misconduct allegations'

Byron Atchison, a chiropractor at the Huron and Highbury Chiropractic Clinic, was formally reprimanded and barred from

practising for up to 12 months at a disciplinary hearing Wednesday morning in Toronto'

ln an agreed statement of facts submitted to the College of Chiropractors of Ontario, Atchison admits he "used profanity, and

made comments that were extremely unprofessional and offensive" to two patients and an employee between April 2014 and

March 4, 2016.

í:i

{
å

d*

http://www.lþress.com lz0l7 /08102/london-chiropractor-byron-atchison-suspended-by-prof'.. 81312017



London chiropractor suspended I Thé London Free press

43
Page2 of3

ln the joint submission presented to the college's disciplinary panel wednesday, Atchison admitted to billing an insurance
provider for at least seven appointments missed by one patient. The London chiropractor also said he altered the client,s
records to make it look like the patient had attended the appointment.

The regulator withdrew its previous allegations that Atchison sexually abused a pat¡ent between April2014and March 12,2016Ïhe college also withdrew its accusation that Atchison emotionally, isychologically, verbally or physically abused that same
client.

The college did not provide details on why the allegations were dropped.

Atchison wâs not available for comment during a call to hls Highbury Avenue office Wednesday afternoon.

A message and emair sent to his rawyer, Valerie wise, were not returned.

ln addition to the year-long suspension, Atchison is also required to pay g15,000 to college by the end oÍ 2e17 .

lf Atchison complies with conditions set out by the college, passes an ethics training course, completes am exam on legislation
and ethics, and finishes a record keeping workshop before June 2,2018,the college will allow him to return to his practice after
serving 10 months of his suspension.

Under the agreement, Atchison will be assessed by his peers six months after he returns to work, a cost he,ll have to cover
himself.

As part of the resolution agreement, Atchison has agreed not to appeal the discipline committee,s decision.

Atchison graduated from the Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College in Toronto in 1981 after obtaining his bachelor of science
degree from the University of Guelph, according to his website.

jbieman@postmedia.com

twitter.com/JenatLFPress

rrffiffiw
This Week's Flyers

HOVER FOR FLYER HOVER FOR FLYER HOVER FOR FLYER

,,8ürilf¿g @ ro¡r¡ngÐ

8A8¡cs'lus

Sn*P*
&+¿lìî

ñegistry App
for easy

on-the-go
browsing,

5r,t0^

$25

]'- ¡'...:.,':¡ ]

fiE*pv
(l , r:i.,ì ¡,,i .!,)

.,r.,j , ,ì...¡rr) .(, r...r

couÞo}{'
ill,-rì yc,r ¡l1d :''),r,rirìt

l{r yc.r r, r rl'i

http://www.lfpress.com/2017108/02llondon-chiropractor-byron-atchison-suspended-by-prof
813120t7



ITEM 1.2
Submitted, Ausust 17, 2017

College of Ghiropractors of Ontario
Fitness to Practise Committee Report to Council 44
Saturday, September 16,2017

Members: Dr. Kristina Peterson, Chair
Ms Georgia Allan
Dr. Peter Amlinger

Staff Support: Jo-Ann Willson, Registrar and General Counsel
Joel Friedman, Director, Policy & Research

Committee Mandate

a To hear and determine allegations of mental or physical incapacity referred to the
committee by the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee.

To review applications for reinstatement following an incapacity finding.a

There have been no committee meetings held since our last council meeting.

I would like to thank the Fitness to Practise Committee members for their time; Ms.
Georgia Allan, Dr. Peter Amlinger and our staff support Ms. Jo-Ann willson.

Respectfully submitted,

Dr. Kristina Peterson, Chair
Fitness to Practise Committee



ITEM 1.3 Submítted to CCO on August 23,2017

College of Ghiropractors of Ontario
lnquiries, Complaints and Reports Gommittee Report to Council
Saturday, September 16, 2017 45

Members Ms Patrice Burke, Chair, Public Member
Dr. Brian Schut, Council Member
Dr. Gauri Shankar, Council Member
Dr. Steve Gillis, non-Council Member
Ms Wendy Lawrence, Alternate Public Member

Staff Support: Ms Christine McKeown,Investigatíons, Complaints & Reports Officer
Ms Tina Perryman, Manager, Inqqíries, Complaints & Reports

Since the last Council meeting, the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee (ICRC)

met on two occasions, and reviewed 20 complaints and one report. ICRC made decisions on

16 complaints and one report. Three oral cautions were administered, one section 75(a)

investigator was approved by the ICRC and three section 75(c) investigators were requested

by the ICRC. Currently, the ICRC has seven ongoing 75(a) Registrars investigations and 13

ongoing 75(c) investigations which were appointment requests from the ICRC. The Health

Professions Appeal and Review Board (HPARB) upheld one Committee decision (attached).

Thank you to the committee members Drs. Schut, Shankar, Gillis and Ms Wendy Lawrence

for their time and commitment. Also thank you to our outstanding support staff from CCO

Ms Tina Perryman, Ms Christine McKeown and thank you for Ms Andrea Szanetz for her

skillful contribution.

Respectfully submitted,

Ms Patrice Burke, Chair, Public Member
Inquires, Complaints & Reports Committee



Health Professions
Appeal and Review
Board

La Commission
d'appel et de révision
des professions de la santé

|TEM 1.s.1

Iu reply please quote: File # 16-CRV-0315 CONTIDENTIAI,

August 8,2017 46

Dr. Janet Walters Member

Dr. B.J. Hardick Respondent

Dear Dr. Walters and Dr. Hardick

Rp: CoMrr,¿,lt{TREVIEw-CHrnopnacuc
J¿wnrW¡rr,TERs, D.C. ano B.J. HnrulcK, D.C.

Ènclosed herewith is a true copy of the Decision and Reasons of the Health Professions Appeal

and Review Board in the above-noted matter.

White your file is now closed, please note that parties to Complaint Reviews of the Health

professions Appeal and Review Board have the right'to request a judicial review of the Board's

decision. you may wish to consicler obtaining legal advice to determine what options are

available to you. To request a judicial review contact the Divisional Court 
^t416-327-5t00.

Yours sincerely,
HEALTH PROFESSIONS APPEAL AND REVIE\il BOARD

Ontario

'r'l@
Nusaiba Khan
Case Officer

Enc[:

J*,

Decision dated August 8, 2017

College of Chiropractors of Ontario

RE CßTVED

AU$ û I ¿0t7

,r1üLtUGE 0F Cifi ÐnR¡KT0At
o¡'

151 Bloor Street West, .9to Floor
'foronto, Ontario M5S 154

Tel/Télé 416-327'8512
Toll free/Sans frus l-866'282'2179

T'[Y/ATS 4 1 6"326-7T"TY(889)

1"1'Y Toll f¡eelATS sans äais l -877-301-0TTY(889)
FtcsimilcÆétócopieur 4 I 6 -327 -8 524

1 5 l, rue Bloor oucst, 9c étagc

Toronto, Ontario M5S l54



47
File#16-CRV-0315 ',.'

OARD

Thomas Kelly, Vice-Chair, presiding
Eivira Sánchez de Malicki, Board Member
Rob Steele, Board Member

Review held on Januar.y 26,2017 at London, Onta¡io

IN THE MÄTTER OF A COMPLAINT RE\rIEW UNDER SECTION 29(J.) of the Heatrh
Professions Pracedural Code, Schedule 2 to the Regulated Health fro¡usìions Act, lg9l,
Statutes of Ontario, 1991, c,18, as amended

BETWEEN:

JANAT WALTnRS, DC
Applicant

B.J. IIÄRDICK, DC

Appearances:
Respondent

PRESENT

The Applicant:
The Respondent:
For the College of Chiropractors of Ontario

For the College of Chiropractors of Ontario

Janet Walters, DC (by teleconference)
B.J. Hardick, DC
Tina Perryman, Representative (by
teleconference)
Richard Steinecke, Counsel (by
teleconference)

and

pECISTON AND R4,ASONS

I. DECISION

It is the decision of the Health Professions Appeal and Review Board to confirm the
decision of the Inquiries, complaints ànd Reports committee of the college of

1



1

48
Chiropractors of Ontario to require B.J. Haldick, DC, to atlend an oral caution with

respect to his communjcations in his professional capacity.

This decision arises from a request made to the Health Professions Appeal and Review

Board (the Board) by Janet Walters, DC (the Applicant) to review a decision of the

Inqrúries, Complaints and Reports Commitlee (the Committee) of the College of

Chiropractors of Ontario (the College), The decision concerned a complaint regarding the

conduct and actions of B.J. Hardick, DC (the Respondent).

The Committee investigated the complaint and decided to issue a caution to the

Respondent as set out above.

il. BÄCKGROUNÐ

4

5

The Applicant and the Respondent are both practicing ohiropraotors.

The Respondent operates two websites. The first is related to the Respondent's

chiropractic practice and the other is related to hiå natural health seminar and coaching

busìness. The homepage of each website has a predominant link to the other, and their

contact infbrmation is the same'

The Respondent had been posting anti-vaccination information on his social meclia

accounts such as Facebook and Twitier, These are acôounts where he refers to himself as

a "Doctor", a "Chiropractor" and a "Doctor of Chiropractic"'

There are clisclaimers on each page of his social media accounts that the accounts are

separate and distinct from his chiropractic practice and relate to his natural health

website.

a
J

6.

7

2



49
The Complaint and the Response

The Campløint

8. The Applicant complained that:

Õ the Respondent has been posting anti-vaccine information on his

professional social meclia accounts such as Facebook ancl Twitter. These a¡.e

accounts where the Respondent refers to himself as a l)octor, DC or Doctor

of chiropractic and information about his practice is readily available on

these sites. The college of chiropractors of ontario Standard s-016

Advertising outlines that websites âxe considered an extension of the

chíropractic office. Thus, the Applicant assumes, social media would be

considered an extension of the chi.ropractic office. Therefore, the Applicant

believes the Respondent is in violation of the Adverlising standa¡d of
Practice;

the Standard of Practice, S-001 chiropractic scope of practice, clearly states

that chiropractors are not able to make comments on vaccinations and

immunization to the public and that chiropractors should refer any questions

that patients may have about the safety and efticacy of immunization and

vaccinations.back to the patient's family doctor. Standard S-001

Chiropractic Scope of Piactice instructs chiropractors to practice within their

scope, indicating that any questions that fall outside the chiropractic scope

of practice need to be referred to the proper practitioner;

given the recent outbreaks of measles and mumps in North America ancl the

risks that these illnesses pose to the general population and at risk

individuals, the Applicant feels it is not only inesponsible for the

Respondent to promote an anti-vaccine sentiment, it is dangerous; and

ll

I

3



50
the Respondent's postings undermine the working relationship that the

College of Chiropractors of Ontario is trying to establish with medical

doctors to promote the legitimacy of the chiropractio profession.

9. 1'he Respondent's response inclucled:

a

The Respon.se

a the "fwitter and Facebook accounts that are the subject of the complaint

are not extensions of his chiropractic practice but are directly linked to his

natural health website, www.DrHardick.com which is operated by Hardick

Seminars and Coaching Inc.;

the website and its social media accounts are separate and distinct from his

chiropractic practice, and there are disclaimel's on every page;

the coaching website, www.DrHardick.com, does not make refenals to his

chiropractic clinic for appointments; his chiropractic þractice has its own

website, www.HardickChiropractic.com, which allows patients to

communicate with staff about appointments and other matters, which the

coaching website does not do;

the posts ìn question relate to less than 1% of the content he has shared on

his social media pages; and

most links shared on these accounts are hyperlinks to other articles and he

has not himself written an article about vaccinations.

a

a

a

I

4



The Committee's Decisiou
51

10. The Committee conducted an investigation of the complaint, and while doing so retained

an expert.

11. T'he expert statecl, in part:

From the perspective of a professional, a Doctor of chiropractic, it would
be expected that a much more informative, balanced view is providecl on
such important public health preventive mea$uss such as vaðcination.

... In the case at hand, the member is in violation of standard. of practice
s-001 as it appears he/she is taking upon himself/herself to post materials
for the purpose of advancing, presumably for the benefit of his/her
auclience/followers, hisiher views on vaccination. The member has done
so using unprofessional format, posting information about vaccines and
vaccination that is imbalanced, ancl self-serving.

... lndeed, it is not larown if any of the social media followers/friends of
the member are also his/her patients. However, as pointed out by the
complainant, the social media accounts of the member had prominent
cross-referencing to the chiropractic practice of the membei, and there is
no doubt that the responders to hisrher postings know the chiropractic
qualification of the member. In my opinion, tËir iu a weak argument for an
excuse on the mernber's part, and a failed attempt at concealing the true
intention behind the use of the social mediato piomote not only anti-
vaccination views, but also his/her other business interests. In this sense, I
would agree with the complainant that the social media activity of the
member may constitute a form of adveúising.

... when information is posted on health topics by a professional who may
be perceived by the social media friends to be an ¡oexiert,, having theír
best interests at heaft, that medium then becomes a major source of
information and, in the case of a licensed professional, it may be
considered an extension oftheir professional practice.

12. Following its investigation of the complaint, the Committee rendered a decision.

The Conrmittee concluded that the Respondent's social media presence may sometimes

lack profèssionalism in the following respects:

5

13



i

a

a

52
his views wele completely one-sided a¡rd did not give any consideration of

the opposing views;

some of his comments were non-factual and even disrespectful of those

holding opposing views;

according to the experl, the Respondent did not deal fairly with evidence.

Indeed, accotding to the expert, the Respondent's comments and linked

articles were downright misleading; and

he has had several complaints in the past about the accuracy and fairness

of his statements on vaccinations, other health issues, and his fee structure'

t4. The Committee deeided to require the Respondent to attend an oral caution with respect

to his communications in his professional capacily'

N/. REQUEST FOR FSYIEW

1 5 " In a letter dated May 5, 2016, the Applicant requested that the Board review the

Committee's decision.

V. PO\iltrRS OF'THE BOÄRD

16. After conducting a review of a decision of the Committee, the Boarcl may do one or more

of the following:

a) confirm atl or part of the Committee's decision;

b) make recommendations to the Cornmittee;

c) require the Committee to exercise any of its powers other than to request a

Re gisû'ar' s investigation.

6



11

53
The Board cannot recommend or require the Committee to do tliings outside its
jurisdiction, such as make a finding of misconduct or incompetence against the member,
or require the referral of aliegations to the Discipline Committee that would not, if
proved, constitute either prol'essional misconduct or incompetence.

V. TTIEPARTIES'POSITIONS

18 The Applicant and Respondent made oral submissions at the Review, all of which have
been considered by the Boarcl.

19. The Applicant's submissions inciuded the following:

the Respondent had violated the scope of practice standard by posting

anti-vaccination information on his social media accounts. The violation
was supported by an expert opinion;

the Respondent's social media accounts are an extension of his
professional practice, therefore, he is in violation of the Advertising
Standa¡d of Practice;

o

a

a

a

there is no information that those following the Respondent on sociai

media did not take his advice and put it into practice, which poses a risk to
the public;

following the hearing the Respondent continued to post information about
anti-vaccination during and following the complaint pïocess;

the Respondent docs not understand or does not care to uphold the
standards of practice given his history of prior cornplaints; and

the Applicant requested that the Board recornmend. that the committee
refcr the matter to the Discipline Cornmittee for a hearing.

l

I



54
20. 'fhe Respondentls submissions included the following:

there is no previous decision or standard of practice regarding social media;

a

t

a

a

no complaints have arisen based on his social meclia accounts until the

Applicant' s complaint;

those following the social mcdia accounts at issue do so because of the

nutritional contents;

he has complied with the decision of the Committee since the ruling was

released; and

the Respondent does not contest the oral caution but suggests that this

matter was not taken lightly by the Committee as an oral caution is a

progressive measure of discipline and it appears on the public record.

2T,

22

V. ANÀLYSIS AM) REASONS

Pursuant to section 33(1) of the Health Prafessions Procedural Code (the Code),being

Schedule 2 to the Regr)lated Health Professions Act, Iggl,themandate of the Board in a

complaint review is to consider either the adequacy of the Commíttee's investigation, the

reasonableness ofits decision, or both.

The Board has considered the submissions of the parties, examined the Record of

Investigation (the Record), and reviewed the Committee's decision.

In conducting a complaint review, the Board assesses the adequacy of an investigation

¿ncl reasorrablencss of a Committee decision in reference to the roie of the Commiitee anci

actions available to it when assessing a complaint filed about a member's concluct and

8

23



55
actions. In this regard, the Committee is to act in relation to the College's objeotives

under the sectiott 3 of the Code, lor example, to maintain standards of practice to assure

the quality of the practice of the profession, to maintain staridards and promotc

conlinuing intprovement among the members and to serve and protect the public interest.

The Committee's mandate is that of a screening committee with regard to complaints

about its members. The Committee considers the information it obtains to determine

whether, in all of the circumstances, a referral of specific allegations of professional

misconduct to the College's Discipline Committee is warranted or if some other remedial

action shouid be taken. Actions available to the Committee upon considering a complaint

include taking no action with regard to a member's practice, directing remedial measuîes

intended to improve an aspect of a member's practice or referring specified allegations of
professional misconduct to the Discipline Committee.

Adequacy of the Investigation

An adequate investigation does not need to be exhaustive. Rather, the Comrrrittee must

seek to obtain the essential inf'ormation relevant to making an informed decision

regarding the issues raised in the complaint.

The Board finds the Committee's investigation to be adecluate for the following reasons.

After reviewing the Record, the Board finds that the Committee's investigation covers

the issues raised in the complaint and the events in question and, includes the relevant

documentation requirecf to review the Respondent's actions. Specifically, the Board notes

that the Committee obtained the following:

¡ the Applicant's complaint to the college and related comespondence ancl

memoranda of telephone discussions between the College investigator and the

Applicant;

' the Respondent's response letter to the College a¡rcl relatecl correspondence;

¡ the Chiropractic Act;

)A

25

26

9



Chiropractic Standards of Practice;

the independent expert opinion; and

56

the Respondent's conduct history

27.

obtain.

28. The Boarcl concludes that the Committee collected and considered the essential

information to assess the complaint. There is no indication of fiuther information that

might reasonably be expected to have affected the decision, should the Committee have

acquired it. Accordingly, the Board finds that the Committee's investigation was

adequate.

Reasonableness of the Decision

In considering the reasonableness of the Committee's decision, the questibn for the Board

is not whether it would arrive at the same decision as the Committee, but whether the

Committee's decision can reasonably be supported by the information before it and can

withstand a somewhat probing examination. In doing so, the Board gonsiders whether the

decision falls within a range of possible, acceptable outcomes that are defensible in

respect of the facts and the law.

30 The Board finds the Committee's decision to be reasonable in the circumstances for the

following reasons.

31. At the outset, the Respondent advised the Board that he does not contest the oral caution

delivered by the Committee, and did not challenge any aspect of the Committee's

decision.

The Applicant submitted that the matter should be refered to the Discipline Committee

for a hearing.

t

a

Neither party submitted that there was relevant information that the Committee did not

29.

32.

10



57
a1JJ The Board notes that the Respondent has a significant complaints history

As notecl hy rhe Commitlee, there were seven prior complaints decisions, of which five

involved statements about vaccinations, among other things. The Committee further

noted that the other two complaints dealt with, in part, the lack of full and fair financial

disclosure, which issue is not completely unrelated to the issue of misleading statements

about vaccinations. The seven decisions resulted in one letter of advice, two reminders

and one lyritten caution.

The Board acknowledges the College's information that there is no written standard that

directly applies to social media. The Committee fou¡rd that the Respondent,s sociai media

presence may harre lacked professionalism.

36 It is evident from the Committee's decision to caution the Respondent that it sonsidered a

referral to discipline, as the Comrnittee stated that there were a number of reasons why a

referral to discipline may not be warranted in this case, including the following:

the expectations on chiropractors discussing vaccinations are somewhat

(but not compietely) in flux;

the comments were not directed specifically at patients and were made in a

broacler forum where the audience could be less rikely to view it as

specific advice about their personal circnmstances;

34.

' 35.

a

a

a many of the comments were in the form of links to other publicly

available sources. The committee's concern was more about the

selectiveness of the links and the giving of credibility ro the linked

¡naterials as a chiropractor to only one side of the debate (and possibly that

sources were less scientifically rigorous th¿¡¡r other sources the Respondent

clid not refer readers to);

1i



a

a

58
discipline is usually reserved for incompetence or the more serious forms

of misconduct that caffìot be better addressed through other measures.

While not limited to the following, the forms of alleged misconduct most

frequently referred to discipline involve dishonesty, breach of trust (e.g.

abuse of ciient) or deliberate breach of a significant professional value. In

terms of seriousness, the Respondent's alleged conduot is at the moderate,

middle portion of the scale.and is not as serious as abuse of trust (like

sexual abuse) or outight dishonesfy (like false billing). There v/as no

information that anyone took these posts as advice and was in fact harmed;

and

even though the Respondeut has a signifrcant prior history in this atea, he

has not yet received an oral caution. The principles ofprogressive

discipline suggest that an oral caution be attempted.

37.

38.

39,

The Boa¡d has con'sidered the Committee's analysis and concludes that it had a sufficient

basis on which to arrive at the conclusions it did.

The Committee then appropriately exercised its discretion to determine a reasonable

disposition in response to its concerns.

The Board finds that the dispositibn is reasonable and appropliately addresses the areas

identified by the Committee.

The Board observes that the caution has already had an appropriately educative effect.

The Board notes that the Respondent has confirmed that he has altered his approach in

the areas indicatcd. Thus, the Board is satisfied that the Respondent has taken the

Committee' s disposition seriously.

40.

12



4T,

43

44

59
Furthermore, the Board considers significant that the oral caution will remain on the

Respondent's permanent record with the College and must be considered should another

complaint alise in the future.

42' The Committee could have referred specific allegations of professional misconduct to

diseipline instead of requiring the Respondent to attend for an oral caution. The

Committee noted a number of reasons why a referral to d.iscipline was not warranted in
this case.

The Board concludes that an oral caution acknowledges the merits of the Applicant's
complaint and addresses the issue of public protection. The caution is both educative and

remedial. A caution is one of the options available to the College to enable it to fi¡lfill its
mandate to protect the public.

Significantly, the Committee concluded that the principles of progressive discipline

suggest that an oral caution be attempted prior to imposing a discipline hearing, The

Board finds that an oral caution falls within the range of possible, acceptable outcomes

available to the Committee in light of its findings regarding the complaints made. The

Board thus finds the committee's decision to be reasonable.

13



60, VI. DECISION

45 Pursuant to section 35(1) of the Code, the Board confirms the Comrnittee's decision to

require the Respondent to attend an oral caution with respect to his commrinications in

his professional capacity.

ISSUED August 8,2017

Thomas'I(el'ly'

Sánchez de

t4



ITEM 1.4
61

Created Internally

College of Chiropractors of Ontario
Advertising Committee Report to Council
Saturday, September 16 2017

Members: Dr. Peter Amlinger, Chair
Mr. Douglas Cressman
Dr. Colin Goudreau, non-Council member
Dr. Kristina Peterson

Staff Support: Mr. Joel Friedman, Director, Policy & Research

The Advertising Committee has not met since the last Council meeting.

The Committee continues to review proposed advertisements submitted by members for
review, which now include websites and electronic media.

The Committee will be distributing Draft Policy P-016: Public Outreach for feedback as

part of CCO's next distribution following the September Council meeting and will review
the feedback at its next in-person meeting.

I would also like to thank my fellow committee members Mr. Doug Cressman and Drs
Goudreau and Peterson. Their commitment to the work of this committee and to
regulating the profession in the public interest is most appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

Dr. Peter Amlinger,
Chair, Advertising Committee



Por-rcv
P-016

Advertising Committee
Approved by Council: June22,2007
Amended: September 13,2008, September 24,2009, December 1,2011

Public Display Protocol

70

i

Note to reailers: ln the eoent of any inconsistency between this document and the legisløtion thøt

fficts chiropractic practice, the legislation governs.

ln¡re¡¡r

To ensure that chiropractic is consistently promoted in a professional manner with
personal accountability. This protocol provides members with some practical
approaches to community event planning and implementation'

DescnrpnoN oF PoLtcY

Displays include presentations of printed or other visual material to members of the
public, in a place normally frequented by the public, by a person or persons who
are physically present when such material is distributed or presented. They do not
include signage billboards, or other forms of visual advertising that do not ordinar-
ily require that the petson advertising be physically present.

Public display is a type of community service that includes educational sessions

and/or public health screenings. These public events are used to encourage and
promote chiropractic in a positive and professional manner.

An educational session is a live communication to a group, organization or the
public at large. This may include a formal lecture, informal discussion or presenta-
tion. Professional accountability is imperative as these sessions are usually per-
formed in the absence of formal evaluations.

A public health screening is an assessment procedure to identi$r possible
chiropractic/health concerns that may require attention. Members may only
perform a screening assessment on willing participants.

Members may conduct a public display/health screening only at the following
events - health fairs and trade shows.

Health fair is a community event focused on the promotion of health.

Trade show is an exhibition for people or comPanies in a specific industry to
demonstrate products and services.

,.c*

%:1 Ëi.
tå 'j
s,..

ru
f$

ùt
È

!:

'I
.':

1

ij
:,.

Çollege ol Chíropractors ol Ontario



Po¡-lcy
P-016

Public Display Protocol

71

2

Eilucøtionøl sessions provide an excellent opportunity to promote chiropractic, and
to inform and educate the public.

Public heølth screenings that stress the importance of preventative health
strategies are used in health professions and are widely recognized to promote
public health.

Public displays and public health screenings are of value to the public because they
may identify early signs of potential health problems and educate the public about
chiropractic. They can be used to help builda stronger chiropractic prérur,"" in the
professional and public communities. These events are intended to promote
chiropractic as a legitimate, safe and effective health care choice.

Set-uplPresentation

All aspects of public clisplays/health screenings will be evaluatcd by the
participating public and other professions and, for that reasorç must remain
professional.

signs, communicatiory marketing material, and professional appearance are all
important factors to consider when planning the set-up and delivery of a public
display/health screening.

Signs should state the purpose and intent of the event (e.g., chiropractic talks,
spinal evaluatiory postural evaluatiory etc.). Membutr -uy have signage listing their
a{!itia!i9n with groups, societies or associations, provid"d thut theãffiiiated gäup
officially recognizes the event.

cco requires notificatioru in writing, informing of a public display/health
screening at least 10 business days prior to the event. The notifiiati,on must include
the names of participating member(s) and the event's date, time and location.

Chiropractic Representat¡on

CCo requires that at least one licensed member be present at a public display/
health screening at all times.

lnformation for Distribution

The distribution of all chiropractic information and communication materials (e.g.,
pamphlets, posters, handouts, video/audio materials, etc.) at public displays/heal-th
screenings shall comply with standard of practice s-016: Advärtising. ico
recommends that such materials be forwarded to cco for pre-appróval.

College of Chiropractors ol Ontario



Poucv
P-016

Public Display Protocol

72

Turnaround time for approval is approximately 10 business days'

Screening Procedures

The primary purpose of a public display/health screening is to educate the public.
A member should not pressure or aggressively solicit any potential participant.
Participation must be voluntary.

For the purpose of the public display protocol, "fully informed" means the

participant understands that the purpose of the screening is not to diagnose but to
screen him/her for potential problems that may require further investigation in a
formal office setting. A member must provide the participant with a description and

explanation of the purpose of the screening procedure. Prior to performing any

assessment procedure, a member shall obtain consent that is:

. fully informed;

. voluntarily given;

. related to the patient's condition and circumstances;

. not obtained through fraud or misrepresentation; and

. evidenced in written form and signed by the participant or otherwise
documented in the patient health record.

A member shall:

. advise the participant that he/she may withdraw his/her consent at any time;

. offer the participant the option of having the assessment performed in a private
area (e.g., separated or sectioned off with a curtain); and

o perform a screening in compliance with the current privary legislation.

A member shall not:

. disrobe or gown any participant at a public displaylhealth screening;

. use a method of assessment that uncovers, shifts or alters a participant's
clothing (e.g., shirts, slacks, dresses, etc.) in a way that would be construed as

disrespectful, embarrassing and/or inappropriate; and

. perform therapeutic interventions, €.g., soft tissue therapy or massage,

stretching, mobilizations, manipulation or adjustment (manual/instrumented).

3

College of Chiropractors of Ontârio



:-::::.,.*i¡P-:.. ::- : r-

Por-rcy
P-016

73

A members is reminded:

' if a fee is charged for the screening procedure, the fee must be disclosed to the
participant before the service is provided;

o to comply with section 4 of standard of practice s-016: Advertising;

' to be sensitive to the fact that he/she may be screening a participant who is
already receiving chiropractic care; and

o to not compare their services to any other chiropractor, directly or indirectly.

If it is-deemed appropriate that a participant requires any follow-up chiropractic
care, the member should recommend that the pãrticipani visit a chiropracior of
his/her choice.

It remains a participantb choice to follow up with a more complete evaluation at a
chiropractic office.

Screening Equipment

Assessment procedures may include computerized testing, simple functional
testing (with no equipment) and/or questionnaires.

Assessments currently accepted:

r questionnaires
. postural evaluation - computerized, plumb lines or manual
' hands-on procedures (e.g., range of motion, flexibility, static/motion palpation). dual or four quadrant weight scales

' zurface electromyography (sEMG)** (cervical spine only, when appropriate)
' tl-relmography/thgrmal scanning (to already exþosed spinal utu^å ãrly, ,,o 

'

clothing is to be shifted/moved)**

** tEYG, thermography/thermal scanning and computerized spinal analysis must
follow generally accepted protocols.

Public Ðisplay Protocol

4

College ol Chiropractors ol Ontario



Poucv
P-016

Public Display Protocol

74

A member is reminded that he/she represents a profession with high standards and,

when performing any of the above assessments, he/she may be compared to other
professions.

Professional Conduct

A member shall adhere to CCO regulations and standards of practice (including,
but not limited to, consent and record keeping) at all times. A complaint of
professional misconduct may occur if, having regard to all the circumstances, a

member's conduct would reasonably be regarded as disgraceful, dishonourable or
unprofessional.

.É*

4i
:f

#,
}:Q.Èi

t)ì

5

Gollege of Chiropraclors ot Ontar¡o









































































































Newsroom : Ontario Strengthens Laws to Prevent Sexual Abuse of Patients Page 3 of3

Quotes 410
"Today marks an important milestone for our government. The passage of this

legislation reinforces our commitment to putting patients first and protecting

Ontar¡o's health care system for generations to come. The Protecting Patients

Act w¡ll help ensure that people in Ontario remain healthy and safe."

Dr. Eric Hoskins
Minister of Health and Long-Term Care

"We commend the government on the passage of the Protect¡ng Patients Act. This legislation is an

important step in protecting patients and supporting survivors of sexual abuse. We look forward to

working with the government to implement recommendations from To Zero: lndependent Report of the

Minister's Task Force on the Prevention of SexualAbuse of Patients and the Regulated Health Professions

Act."

Farrah Khan and Sly Castaldi, co-chairs of Ontario's Roundtable on Violence Against

Women

and Sheila Macdonald, member of Ontario's Task Force on the Prevention of Sexual

Abuse of Patients and the Regulated Health Professions Act

https://news.ontario.calmohltclen/2}l7l05lontario-strengthens-laws-to-prevent-sexual-abus... 7l17/2017



|TEM 4.1.21

444
Bv+aw 17: Pueuc RectsrER
Approved by Councíl: September 24, 2009

Amended: September 17, 2015, Apríl 19, 2016

l7.l Subject to By-law 17.2, amember's name in the register shall be the full name

indicated on the document used to support the member's initial registration with
the College

17.2 The Registrar may enter a name other than the name referred to in By-law 17.1 in
the register if the Registrar:

(a) has received a written request from the member;

(b) is satisfied that the member has legally changed his or her name; and

(c) is satisfied that the name change is not for any improper purpose.

17.3 Subject to ByJaw 17.6(q)(i), a member's business address in the register shall be

the address of the location in Ontario where the member is employed or self-
employed as a chiropractor. In the event that the member is employed or self-
employed as a chiropractor in more than one location in Ontario, the member's
business address shall be then member's primary practice. In the event that
the member is not employed or selÊemployed in Ontario as a chiropractor, the

regisffar shall enter as the member's business address the location designated

by the member.

17.4 A member's business telephone number shall be the telephone number of the

location in Ontario where the member is employed or self-employed as a

chiropractor. In the event that the member is employed or self-employed as a

chiropractor in more than one location in Ontario, the member's business

telephone number shall be the telephone number of the member's primary
practice. In the event that the member is not employed or self-employed in
Ontario as a chiropractor, the register shall not contain a business telephone

number for the member.

17.5 The Registrar shall maintain a register in accordance with section 23 of the Code.

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



By-law 17: Public Register 
445 

2

L7.6 In addition to the information set out in subsection 23(2) of the Code, the register
shall contain the following publically available information with respect to each
member:

(a) For every matter that has beerrreferred bythc lnqu-nes;eomalaints and
Reports Committee to the Discipline Committee under section 26 of the
Code, or where the Registrar has referred an application for reinstatement
to the Discipline Committee under section 73 of the Code, and the matter
has not been finally resolved, until the matter has been resolved,

(Ð

(ii)

(iiD any hearing dates, including dates for the continuation of the
hearing;

(iv) the notice of hearing; and

(v) the status of the hearing.

(b) Where the results of a disciplinary proceeding are contained in the
register, the date on which the panel of the Discipline Committee made the
finding ofprofessional misconduct or incompetence and the date on which
the panel made the order;

(c) After July 1,2016, a suÍtmary of any reprimand given publicly to a
Member as part of a panel of the Discipline committee, unless the results
of the proceeding before the Discipline Committee are not otherwise
available to the public under the Code.

a notation of that fact, including the date of the referral;

a sunmary of each specified allegation; and

(d) Where a decision of a panel of the Discipline Committee has been
published by the College with the member's or former member's name
included,

(Ð anotationofthatfact; and

(ii) identifïcation of, a link to, or a copy of the specific publication
containing that decision.

(e) Where the member's certificate of registration is subject to an interim
order, a notation of that fact, the nature of the order and the date that the
order took effect;



By-law 17: Public Register

(Ð Where the member's certificate of registration is subject to a suspension

for failure to pay a fee, the reason for the suspension and the date of the

suspension in addition to the fact of that suspension;

(g) Where, during or as a result of a proceeding under section 25 of the Code

a member has resigned, a notation of that fact.

(h) Where, on or after July l, 2016 , for a complaint or for a matter in which
an investigator is appointed under section 75(1)(a) or 75(1Xb) of the Code,

a panel of the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee requires a

member to appear before a panel of the Committee to be cautioned,

(Ð a notation of that fact;

(ii) a summary of the caution;

(iii) the date of the panel's decision; and

(iv) if applicable, a notation that the panel's decision is subject to
review and is not yet final, which notation shall be removed once

the review and any reconsideration by the Committee is finally
disposed of.

(i) The information required under By-law 17 .6(h) shall be removed from the

register 12 months after the Registrar is satisfied that the member has

appeared before a panel of the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports

Committee and received the caution.

Where, on or after July 1, 2016 , for a complaint or for a matter in which
an investigator is appointed under 75(lXa) or 75(1)(b) of the Code, a

panel of the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee takes other
action requiring a member to complete a specified continuing education or
remediation program,

3

446

û)

(i) a notation of that fact,

(ii) a srrrnmary of the specified continuing education or remediation
program,

the date of the panel's decision,(iii)

(iv) the date the specified continuing education or remediation program

is successfully completed, and



By-law 17: Pubfic Register

447

(v) if applicable, a notation that the panel's decision is subject to
review and therefore is not yet final, which notation shall be
removed once the review and any reconsideration by the
Committee is finally disposed of.

(k) The information required under By-law 17.6(l) shall be removed from the
register l2 months after the Regishar is satisfied that the Member has
successfully completed the specified continuing education or remediation
program.

Where, on or after July l, 2016, for a complaint or for a matter in which
an investigator is appointed under 75(l)(a) or 75(l)(b) of the Code, a
panel of the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee obtains an
undetaking from the Member,

(Ð

(ii)

(iiD

(iv) if applicable, a notation that the panel's decision is subject to
review and therefore is not yet final, which notation shall be
removed once the review and any reconsideration by the
Committee is finally disposed of.

(m) The information required under By-law 17.6(l) shall be removed from the
register 12 months after the Registrar is satisfied that the Member has
successfully completed the all of the terms of the undertaking.

(n) Notwithstanding By-laws 17.6(h), O and (l), where, after a review, the
lnquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee has been required to remove
or vary the appearance for a caution, specified continuing education or
remediation program or undertaking, the notation may be removed once
the Committee makes its new decision. Where the original requirement to
appear for a caution or to complete a specified continuing education or
remediation progrum has been varied, the Registrar may enter a summary
of the process leading up to and the results of the variation.

(o) A decision of any findings of guilt, of which the college is aware, made
by a court after July 1,2016, against a Member in respect of a criminal
offence.

4

(l)

a notation of that fact,

a suÍrmary of the terms ofthe undertaking,

the date of the panel's decision, and



By-law 17: Publíc Regíster

448

(p) Where the College is aware that a member is currently registered or
licensed to practise a profession inside of Ontario, a notation of that fact.

(q) the following practice information related to a member:

The business address, business telephone number and business

email of up to three practice locations;

5

(i)

(iÐ

(iÐ

The member's gender;

the name of the chiropractic education program graduated by the

member and year of graduation from that program;

the year of initial registration with CCO; and

up to three languages in which the member offers professional

services, as identified by the member.

(iii)

(iv)

17.7 If requested, the member shall immediately provide the College with the

following information, in the form requested by the College:

(a) information required to be maintained in the register in accordance with
subsection 23(2) of the Code andBy-law 17.6;

the address and telephone number of the member's primary residence in
Ontario and, if the member does not reside in Ontario, the address and

telephone number of the member's primary residence;

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(Ð

The member's email addresses;

Proof of professional liability insurance;

The member's areas of practice and categories of clients seen;

lnformation regarding the member' s employment including:

(i) the member's title and position,

(ii) a description of the member's role, duties, and responsibilities, and

(iiÐ the member's employment category and status.

any nicknames or abbreviations that the member uses in any place of(e)



By-law 17: Public Regíster

practice;

(h) information about the member's registration with any other body that
governs a profession, whether inside or outside of Ontario, including the
name of the governing body, the member's regishation or license number
and the date the member first became registered;

(i) information about any finding ofprofessional misconduct or incompetence
or similar finding that has been made against he member by a body that
governs a profession, inside or outside of ontario, where the finding has
not been reversed on appeal, including;

(i) the finding,

(iù the name of the governing body that made the fînding,

(iiÐ a brief summary of the facts on which the finding was based,

(iv) the penalty and any other orders made relative to the finding,

(v) the date the finding was made, and

(vi) information regarding any appeals of the finding.

(t) information about any fïnding of incapacity or similar finding that has
been made against the member by a body that govems a profession, inside
or outside of ontario, where that finding has not been reversed on appeal,
including:

(Ð the finding

(ii) the name of the goveming body that made the finding,

(iiÐ the date the finding was made,

(iv) a srunmary of any order made, and

(v) information regarding any appeals of the finding.

(k) information about the member's participation in the euality Assurance
Program,

(l) information for the purpose of compiling statistical data,

6

449



By-law 17: Public Register

450

17.8 The member shall notify the College, in, writing, of any changes to the following
information within 30 days of the effective date of the change:

(a) the member's name,

(b) the address and telephone number of the member's primary residence in
Ontario and, if the member does not reside in Ontario, the address and

telephone number of the member's primary residence,

(c) the member's business address or business telephone number

17.9 All of the information in the register is designated, under subsection 23(6) of the
Code, as information that may be withheld from the public if the Registrar has

reasonable grounds to believe that disclosure may jeopardize the safety of an

individual.

7



Rose Bustria rrEM 4.1.22

Jo-Ann Willson
Wednesday, July 12,2017 12:14 PM
karoline. bourdeau@gmail.com; allangeorgia@hotmail.com; Brian Schut
(bschut@cmcc.ca); Cliff Hardick; David Starmer; Doug Cressman; Gauri
Shan kar (gauri.shankar@bellnet.ca); Judith McCutcheon
(judithmccutcheon@rogers.com); Kristina Peterson (kristyp@tbaytel.net); Liz
Anderson-Peacock; Pat Tavares (dr.patricia.tavares@gmail.com); Patrice
Burke; Peter Amlinger; Reginald Gates (drreginaldgates@gmail.com);
ShakilS6@gmail.com; Wendy Lawrence (wendy. lawrence@sickkids.ca)
And rea Szametz (gerandservices@sym patico. ca) ; Anda Vopni ; Bruce
Walton; Christine Mckeown; Funto Odukoya; Joel Friedman; Madeline
Cheng; Sarah Oostrom; Rose Bustria; Tina Perryman
FW: Karoline Bourdeau - New Appointment
OC-1 420-20 17 .pdt; Bourdeau, Karoline 20 1 7-03-3 1 . pdf

451
From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Please join me in welcoming new public member Karoline to CCO Councí|.

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL.B.
Registrar & General Counsel

Gollege of Ch¡ropractors of Ontario
130 Bloor St. West, Suite 902
Toronto, ON MsS 1N5
Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext. 1 1 1

Fax (416) 925-9610
E-mail : ipwillson(Occo. o n.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may conta¡n confidential information and is intended only for the person(s) named above. Any other

distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have received this e-mail in error, please notif me immediately by reply e'mail

and delete all copies including âny attachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you.

From: Da Silva, Lo lly (MO H LTC) [ma ilto : Lo lly. DaSilva @o nta rio.ca]

Sent: Wednesday, July L2,20L7 LL:32 AM
To: Jo-Ann Willson <jpwillson@cco.on.ca>

Cc: Anga rd, Au relie (MOH LTC) <Aurelie.Anga rd @ontario.ca>
Subject: Karoline Bourdeau - New Appointment

HiJo-Ann,

Please find attached copy of a new appo¡ntment OIC for Karoline Bourdeau. Also attached is

her application, for contact information.

Thanks & regards,
Lolly

Lolly da Silva
Senior Program Consultant (A)

Agency Liaison and Public Appointments
Ministry of Health and Long Term Care

80 Grosvenor Street, Hepburn Block, 9th Floor, Toronto ON M7A 1R3

P : 41,6-327 -8502 | F: 416-327 -8496 | E: lollv.dasilva @ontario.ca

1



452
Ontårlo

Executive Gouncil of Ontario
Order in Council

On the recommendation of the undersigned, the
Lieutenant Governor of Ontario, by and with the
advice and concurrence of the Executive Council
of Ontario, orders that:

Conseil exécutif de I'Ontario
Décret

Sur la recommandation de la personne
soussignée, la lieutenante-gouverneure de
l'Ontario, sur I'avis et avec le consentement du
Conseil exécutif de l'Ontario, décrète ce qui suit

PURSUANT TO clause 6(1Xb) of the Chiropractic Act, 1991,

Karoline Bourdeau of Toronto

be appointed as a part-time member of the Council of the College of Chiropractors of Ontario for a

period of three years, effective the date this Order in Council is made.

EN VERTU DE I'alinéa 6 (1) b) de la loi de 1991surles chiropraticíens,

Karoline Bourdeau de Toronto

1O.C./Décret: 1 izatzolT



est nommée au poste de membre à temps partíeldu Conseilde l'Ordre des chiropraticiens de

I'Ontario pour une durée fixe de trois ans à compter du jour de la prise du présent décret.

453

Recommended: Mínister of Health and Long-Term Care
Recommandé par : le ministre de la santé et des soins de longue durée

òlb /t/to{L-;
Concurred: Chair of Cabinet
Appuyé par: le présidenUla présidente du Conseildes ministres

Approved and Ordered:
Approuvé et décrété le :

JUL I I 20tr

Lieutenant Governor
La I ieutenante-gouverneure

2O.C./Décret:



Rose Bustria trEM 4.1.23
Jo-Ann Willson
Friday, August 18,2017 4:54PM
Gauri Shankar (gauri.shankar@bellnet.ca); Cliff Hardick; ShakilS6
@gmail.com; Liz Anderson-Peacock; Judith McCutcheon
( ud ithmccutcheon@rogers. com) ; Wendy Lawrence
(wendy.lawrence@sickkids.ca); Dr. David Starmer; Patrice Burke;
karoline.bourdeau@gmail.com; allangeorgia@hotmail.com; Pat Tavares
(dr.patricia.tavares@gmail.com); Kristina Peterson (kristyp@tbaytel.net);
Peter Amlinger (purposeful.living@bellnet.ca); Reginald Gates
(drreginaldgates@gmail.com); Doug Cressman; Brian Schut
(bschut@cmcc.ca)
Rose Bustria; Andrea Szametz (gerandservices@sympatico.ca); Joel
Friedman
FW: Georgia Allan
OC-1685-2017 .pdf

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc

Subject:
Attachments:

459

Please join me in welcoming Georgia Allan backto CCO Councilforanotherterm! Seeyou in September
Georgia,

Jo-Ann P. Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL.B,

Registrar and General Counsel

College of Chiropractors of Ontario
130 Bloor St. West, Suite 902
Toronto, ON M5S 1N5
Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext. 111
Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-maíl : jpwillson@cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on,ca

CON FI DENTIALITY WARNING :

This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidentíal information and is intended only for the
person(s) named above. Any other distribution, copying or disclosure is stricLly prohibited. If you have

received this e-mail in error, please notify me immediately by reply e-mail and delete all copies including
any attachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you,

From: Dhalla, Rosemin (MOHLTC) [Rosemin,Dhalla@ontario.ca]
Sent: Friday, August LB,2017 4:35 PM

To: Jo-Ann Willson
Cc: Da Silva, Lolly (MOHLTC); Angard, Aurelie (MOHLTC)

Subject: RE: Georgia Allan

HiJo-Ann:

Attached find Georgia Allan's reappointment OIC that was approved by the Cabinet yesterday.

Hope this helps!

Thanks and have a great weekendl

Regards,

1



Rosemin Dhalla

Senior Program Consultant
Agency Liaison and Public Appointments
coiporate Management Branch I Ministry of Health and Long-Term care
gth FL Hepburn Block I 80 Grosvenor St I Toronto, Ontario M7A 1R3
T el: 4L6-327-8498 | Fax: 416-327-8496 | rosem in.d ha I la @onta rio.ca

460

2



Ontarlo

Executive Council of Ontario
Order in Council

On the recommendation of the undersigned, the
Lieutenant Governor of Ontario, by and with the
advice and concurrence of the Executive Council
of Ontario, orders that:

461

Conseil exécutif de I'Ontario
Décret

Sur la recommandation de la personne
soussignée, la lieutenante-gouverneure de
l'Ontario, sur I'avis et avec le consentement du
Conseil exécutif de I'Ontario, décrète ce qui suit :

PURSUANT TO clause 6(1Xb) of the Chiropractic Act, 1991,

Georgia Allan of Smiths Falls

be reappointed as a part-time member of the Council of the College of Chiropractors of Ontario for a

period of three years, effective September 8,2017 to and including September 7,2020.

EN VERTU DE l'alinéa 6 (1) b) de la Loi de 1991 surles chiropraticiens,

Georgia Allan de Smiths Falls

1O.C./Décret: 1 6 8 5 t Zg 17


































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































	cover page.pdf
	Duties and Objects of Colleges
	11mission objectives.pdf
	CCO Code of Conduct
	Rules of Order of the Council
	List of Commonly Used Acronyms at CCO



